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I. Procedure for the 2023 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting  

 

1. Call meeting to order  

 

2.  Chairperson’s address  

 

3.  Report Items 

 

4.  Proposal Items 

 

5.  Discussion Items 

 

6.  Extraordinary motion 

 

7.  Meeting adjournment 
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II. Agenda for the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting  

 

Convening method: Physical shareholders meeting 

Time: 9:00 a.m., June 21, 2023  

Place: No. 631, Zhongzheng Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New Taipei City, Taiwan 

(R.O.C.) (RSL Hotel Taipei Zhonghe)  

1. Call meeting to order  

2. Chairperson’s address 

3. Report Items 

(1) 2022 business report and 2023 business plan. 

(2) Audit Committee’s review report on the 2022 financial statements.  

(3) 2022 distribution report of employee compensation and director remuneration.  

(4) 2022 distribution report of cash dividends. 

(5) Amending part of the articles of the Company’s “Regulations Governing 

Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings”.  

4. Proposal Items  

(1) Adoption of 2022 financial statements.  

(2) Adoption of 2022 earnings distribution.  

5. Discussion Items  
(1) Issuing new shares for capital increase by earnings recapitalization. 

(2) Amending part of the articles of the Company’s “Operational Procedures for 

Loaning of Company Funds”. 

(3)  Releasing the prohibition on directors from participation in competitive 

businesses. 

6. Extraordinary motion  

7. Meeting adjournment  
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III. Agenda of the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting 

1. Call meeting to order 

2. Chairperson’s address 

3. Report Items 

(1) 2022 business report and 2023 business plan: Please refer to Attachment 3 “Business 

Report”, on page 26 of this Handbook.  

(2) Audit Committee’s review report on the 2022 financial statements: Please refer to 

Attachment 4 “Audit Committee’s Review Report”, on page 33 of this Handbook.  

(3) 2022 distribution report of employee compensation and director remuneration.  

Explanatory Notes:  

As adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 16, 2023, 5% of the 

Company’s 2022 profits in an amount of NT$42,528,778 shall be distributed to 

employees as their compensation, whereas 2.5% of the profits in an amount of 

NT$21,264,389 shall be distributed to directors as their remuneration. The preceding 

amounts shall be distributed in cash. The amounts are the same as the amounts 

recognized for the 2022 expenses.    

(4) 2022 distribution report of cash dividends. 

Explanatory Notes: 

1.As adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 16, 2023, the cash 

dividend shall be NT$3.65 per share, total of NT$540,953,430 for shareholders. 

The chairperson was authorized by the Board of Directors to determine the ex-

dividend base date and process related matters of cash dividend distribution.  

2.In case of any change in the per-share cash dividend as a result of the fact that 

repurchase of the Company’s shares, or the treasury stock is transferred or deleted, 

or carries out a cash capital increase , which further affects the number of the  

Company’s outstanding shares, The chairperson shall be authorized to adjust the 

shareholder’s cash dividend rate according to the distribution amount adopted for 

this proposal and the number of the Company’s actual outstanding shares. 

Furthermore, the cash dividend shall be calculated to the nearest dollar and the 

decimal figures shall be rounded off. The amount rounded off from the current cash 

dividend shall be listed as the Company’s other income. 

(5) Amending part of the articles of the Company’s “Regulations Governing Procedure 

for Board of Directors Meetings”. 

Explanatory Notes:  

Amend part of the “Regulations Governing Procedure for Board of Directors 

Meetings” for the amendment of the related rules, please refer to Attachment 5 on 

page 34 of this Handbook.  
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4. Proposal Items 
(1) Adoption of 2022 financial statements. (proposed by the Board of Directors).  

Explanatory Notes:  

1. The Company’s 2022 individual financial statements and consolidated financial 

statements have been audited by CPAs Tsao-Jen Wu and Jun-Guang Chen of KPMG. 

The aforesaid financial statements, together with the business report and earnings 

distribution proposal, have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and adopted by 

the Company’s Board of Directors, and hereby proposed to the annual Shareholders’ 

meeting. 

2. The Company’s financial statements, including the “Business Report” (please refer 

to Attachment 3 on page 26 of this Handbook), and the “2022 Individual financial 

statements and consolidated financial statements along with the CPA’s audit report” 

(please refer to Attachment 6 on page 37 of this Handbook).  

Resolution:  
 

(2) Adoption of 2022 earnings distribution. (proposed by the Board of Directors)  

Explanatory Notes:  

1. It is proposed in accordance with the Company Act and Company’s Articles of 

Incorporation.  

2. The Company’s 2022 earnings are proposed to be distributed according to the 

following statement: 
 

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. 
Earnings Distribution Table Year 2022 

Unit: NT$  
Account   Amount 

 

 Beginning retained earnings  $1,582,850,109  

 
Retained earnings adjusted due to investment 

under the equity method  3,408,480  

 
Retained earnings recognized as 

remeasurement of defined benefit plan   8,673,326  

 

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at 
fair value through other comprehensive 
income   36,606,940   

 Undistributed earnings after adjustment   1,631,538,855   
 Current year net profit after tax  667,452,608    

 Earnings available for distribution  2,298,991,463   
 Allocated for legal reserve ( 71,614,135 ) 

 Reversed for special reserve   142,100,132  

 

  Cash dividend distributed to shareholders  

－ $3.65 per share  ( 540,953,430 ) 

 
  Stock dividend distributed to shareholders 

－ $0.50 per share ( 74,103,210 ) 

 Appropriated retained earnings   $1,754,420,820  
Note: The quantity of the Company’s outstanding shares was 148,206,419. 

 

Chairp er son :   

Fu Hui -Tun g  

Manager :   

Chang Ming-Cheng 

Accounting Chief:  

Chou Cheng-Hsiao 

Resolution:  
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5. Discussion Items 

(1) Issuing new shares for capital increase by earnings recapitalization. (Proposed by the 

Board of Directors) 

Explanatory Notes: 

1.In order to consider the needs of future business development, The 

Company proposes to distribute stock dividends from undistributed 

earnings NT$74,103,210 and issuance of 7,410,321 new shares with a par 

value of NT$10 in 2022. 

2. The conditions for the issuance of shares are as follows： 

(1) The new shares for capital increase are on the base of the current 

number of outstanding shares, each shareholder’s actual number of 

stock dividends will be calculated in ex-dividend base date, 50 shares 

gratuitously allotted for every thousand shares.  

(2) If the new shares distributed to shareholders from this capital increase 

are less than one full share (rounded down to the NT dollar), 

shareholders may consolidate them by handling respective 

procedures. For those shares which cannot be consolidated within the 

specified period or still remain insufficient, and the chairperson shall 

be authorized to designate specific persons for purchase. 

(3) After the capital increase case is approved by the shareholders meeting 

and submitted to the authority for approval, the shareholders' meeting 

is requested to authorize the Board of Directors to set an ex-dividend 

date for the capital increase. 

(4) Rights and obligations of newly issued shares is the same as the 

original shares. 

(5) The above-mentioned matters related to the capital increase, such as 

amendments due to laws and regulations or the approval of the 

authority, or changes in the operation evaluation due to objective 

environmental factors, the shareholders' meeting is requested to 

authorize the Board of Directors. 

(6) If the number of shares outstanding is affected and shareholding ratio 

is thus affected, the shareholders' meeting is requested to authorize 

the Board of Directors. 

Resolution: 
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(2) Amending part of the articles of the Company's “Operational Procedures for Loaning 

of Company Funds”. (Proposed by the Board of Directors)   

Explanatory Notes: 

Amend part of the “Operational Procedures for Loaning of Company Funds”, 

for the amendment of the related rules. Please refer to Attachment 7 on page 

55 of this Handbook. 

Resolution:  

 

(3) Releasing the prohibition on directors from participation in competitive businesses. 

(Proposed by the Board of Directors)  

Explanatory Notes: 

1. According to Article 209 of the Company Act, “a director who acts for 

themselves or on behalf of others within the Company’s business scope 

shall explain to the Board of Shareholders the essential contents of such 

an act and obtain its approval”.  

2. In case that any of the Company’s directors invests in or operates a 

business same as or similar to the Company and act as a director in such 

business, they shall submit the case to the shareholders’ meeting and 

obtain its approval. If the Company’s directors is also under the aforesaid 

circumstance, the Company agrees to release the prohibition on directors 

from participation in competitive businesses. 

3. List of Release of the prohibition on Directors from participation in 

competition businesses. Please refer to Attachment 8 on page 56 of this 

Manual. 

  

Resolution: 

 

6 Extraordinary motion  

 

7 Meeting adjournment  
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IV. Attachment 

Attachment 1：Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meetings  
 

Amended in the regular shareholders’ meeting held on June 21, 2022 

Article 1: In order to establish a good shareholders’ meeting governance system, strengthen 

the supervision function and reinforce management efficiency, the Company 

specifically sets up the Rules in accordance with Article 5 of the Corporate 

Governance Best Practice Principle for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies for the 

personnel across the Board to comply with.  

Article 2:  Unless otherwise stated by law or the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the 

Rules shall be followed in the Company’s shareholders’ meetings.  

Article 3:  Unless otherwise stated by law, the Company’s shareholders’ meetings shall be 

convened by the Board of Directors.  

          Any changes in the method of convening the shareholder meeting in our company 

must be approved by the Board of Directors and implemented no later than the 

dispatch of the meeting notice to the shareholders. 

The Company shall prepare the shareholders’ meeting notification letter, letter of 

proxy and the subjects of various motions, such as adoption case, discussion cases 

and director election or dismissal, as well as the explanation data, in electronic 

format and transmit them to the Market Observation Post System at least 30 days 

before a regular shareholders’ meeting or 15 days before a special shareholders’ 

meeting. At the same time, the shareholders’ meeting agenda handbook and 

meeting supplementary materials shall be prepared in electronic format and 

transmitted to the Market Observation Post System at least 21 days prior to a 

regular shareholders’ meeting or at least 15 days prior to a special shareholders’ 

meeting. If, however, The Company has the paid-in capital of NT$10 billion or 

more as of the last day of the most current fiscal year, or total shareholding of 

foreign shareholders and PRC shareholders reaches 30% or more as recorded in 

the register of shareholders of the shareholders meeting held in the immediately 

preceding year, transmission of these electronic files shall be made by 30 days 

before the regular shareholders meeting. The agenda handbook and the 

supplementary materials for the shareholders’ meeting in question shall be 

prepared at least 15 days prior to the shareholders’ meeting for requesting by 

shareholders, displayed at the Company and its stock affairs service agency’s 

place.  

The agenda and supplementary materials of the aforementioned manual and 

meeting shall be made available for shareholders to review on the day of the 

shareholder meeting in the following manner: 

1.For physical shareholders meetings, to be distributed on-site at the meeting. 

2.For hybrid shareholders meetings, to be distributed on-site at the meeting and 

shared on the virtual meeting platform. 

3.For virtual-only shareholders meetings, electronic files shall be shared on the 

virtual meeting platform.  

The reason for convening a meeting shall be specified in the notification and 

announcement: If it is agreed by the counterparty, the notification can be made in 

electronic format.  

Director election or dismissal, change of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, 

reduction of capital, application for the approval of ceasing its status as a public 
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company, approval of competing with the company by directors, surplus 

recapitalization, earnings recapitalization, the dissolution, merger, split or the 

matters prescribed by Paragraph 1 of Article 185 of the Company Act; Articles 26-

1 and 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act; and Articles 56-1 and 60-2 of the 

Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities 

Issuers, shall be set out and the essential contents explained in the causes for 

convening a meeting. Those matters shall not be put forth as extemporary 

motions. Where re-election of all directors as well as their inauguration date is 

stated in the notice of the reasons for convening the shareholders meeting, after 

the completion of the re-election in said meeting such inauguration date may not 

be altered by any extraordinary motion or otherwise in the same meeting.  

Those shareholders who hold more than 1% of the issued shares are entitled to 

submit a motion to a regular shareholders’ meeting. However, each of them can 

only submit one motion at a regular shareholders’ meeting; further motions will 

not be listed in the agenda. Also, for any motions proposed by shareholders under 

any of the circumstances listed in Paragraph 4 of Article 172-1 of the Company 

Act, the Board of Directors may exclude them in the agenda.  

Shareholders may propose advisory proposals to urge the company to enhance 

public interests or fulfill social responsibilities. In terms of procedure, according 

to the relevant provisions of Article 172-1 of the Company Act, only one proposal 

is allowed. Proposals exceeding one item will not be included in the agenda. 

The Company shall announce the opening of acceptance of shareholders’ 

proposals in writing or electronically, and acceptance place and period before the 

suspension date of stock ownership transfer prior to the holding of a regular 

shareholders’ meeting. The acceptance period shall be at least 10 days.  

Any motion proposed by shareholders shall be limited to 300 words. Those over 

300 words shall not be listed in the agenda. Proposing shareholders shall attend 

the regular shareholders’ meeting in person, or appoint others to attend on their 

behalf, and participate in discussion of the proposed motion.  

The Company shall notify the proposing shareholders of the handling results 

before the shareholders’ meeting notification day, and list the motions meeting the 

regulations of this Article in the meeting notification. For those shareholders’ 

motions not being listed in the agenda, the Board of Directors shall elaborate on 

the reason for not listing them in the agenda at the shareholders’ meeting. 

Article 4:  For each shareholders’ meeting, a shareholder may appoint a representative with a 

letter of proxy printed by the Company to attend the meeting on their behalf. The 

letter of proxy shall state the scope of authorization for the meeting. 

A shareholder can issue a letter of attorney and appoint one representative only. 

The letter of proxy shall arrive at the Company at least five days before the 

shareholders’ meeting. In case that there is any repetition of the letter of proxy, the 

first one arriving at the Company shall prevail. However, it is not limited to the 

situation where revocation of the prior letter of proxy is declared.  

After the letter of proxy arrives at the Company, if the shareholder wishes to 

attend the shareholders’ meeting in person or to exercise voting rights by 

correspondence or electronically, he or she shall notify the Company of the proxy 

revocation in writing at least two days prior to the shareholders’ meeting. In case 

of any overdue revocation, the voting right exercised by the attending proxy shall 

prevail.                                                           
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If, after a proxy form is delivered to The Company, a shareholder wishes to attend 

the shareholders meeting online, a written notice of proxy cancellation shall be 

submitted to the Company two days before the meeting date. If the cancellation 

notice is submitted after that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy shall 

prevail.  

Article 5: The location of the shareholders' meeting should be at the company's registered 

address or a location convenient for shareholders to attend and suitable for 

holding the meeting. The meeting should not commence earlier than 9:00 AM or 

later than 3:00 PM. The choice of the meeting location and time should take into 

account the opinions of independent directors. 

The restrictions on the place of the meeting shall not apply when the company 

convenes a virtual-only shareholders meeting. 

Article 6: The notice of the shareholders' meeting should indicate the registration time and 

location for shareholders, soliciting persons, and entrusted agents (hereinafter 

referred to as “shareholders”), as well as other matters requiring attention.  

The registration time for accepting shareholders should be at least thirty minutes 

before the start of the meeting. The registration location should be clearly marked, 

and appropriate personnel should handle it. For a virtual-only shareholders' 

meeting, shareholders should register on the virtual-only meeting platform at least 

thirty minutes before the start of the meeting. Shareholders who have completed 

registration are considered as attending the meeting in person. 

Shareholders should attend the shareholders' meeting with their attendance 

certificate, attendance sign-in card, or other attendance documents. The company 

may not arbitrarily require shareholders to provide other proof of attendance 

beyond the proof of attendance documents they have submitted. Solicitors who 

belong to a solicitation proxy should bring their identity documents for 

verification. 

The company should provide a sign-in book or accept a sign-in card from 

attending shareholders to confirm their attendance. 

The company should provide attending shareholders with meeting materials such 

as an agenda, annual report, attendance certificate, speaking slips, voting ballots, 

and other meeting documents. If there is a director election, an election ballot 

should be attached. 

When the government or a legal person is a shareholder, the representative 

attending the shareholders' meeting is not limited to one person. When a legal 

person is entrusted to attend the shareholders' meeting, only one person may be 

appointed to represent the company.  

For virtual-only shareholders' meetings, shareholders who wish to attend virtually 

should register with the company two days before the meeting. 

For virtual-only shareholders' meetings, the company should upload the meeting 

materials such as the agenda, annual report, and other relevant information to the 

virtual-only meeting platform at least 30 minutes before the meeting start time and 

continuously disclose them until the end of the meeting. 

 

Article 6-1:  When the company convenes a virtual-only shareholders' meeting, the following 

matters should be stated in the notice of the shareholders' meeting: 

1. Methods for shareholders to participate in the virtual-only meeting and exercise 
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their rights.  

2. Actions to be taken if the virtual-only meeting platform or participation in the 

virtual-only meeting is obstructed due to natural disasters, accidents or other force 

majeure events, at least covering the following particulars: 

(1) To what time the meeting is postponed or from what time the meeting will 

resume if the above obstruction continues and cannot be removed, and the date to 

which the meeting is postponed or on which the meeting will resume. 

(2) Shareholders who did not register for virtual participation in the original 

shareholders' meeting shall not participate in the postponed or resumed session.  

(3) In case of a hybrid shareholders meeting, when the virtual-only meeting 

cannot be continued, if the total number of shares represented at the meeting, after 

deducting those represented by shareholders attending the virtual-only 

shareholders meeting online, meets the minimum legal requirement for a 

shareholder meeting, then the shareholders meeting shall continue. The shares 

represented by shareholders attending the virtual-only meeting online shall be 

counted towards the total number of shares represented by shareholders present at 

the meeting, and the shareholders attending the virtual-only meeting online shall 

be deemed abstaining from voting on all proposals on meeting agenda of that 

shareholders meeting. 

(4) The handling of situations where the results of all agenda items have been 

announced, and no extraordinary motions have been proposed. 

3. When convening a virtual-only shareholders' meeting, appropriate alternative 

measures should be provided for shareholders who encounter difficulties in 

participating via virtual means. 

Article 7: If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting 

shall be chaired by the chairperson of the Board of Directors. If the chairperson is 

on leave or cannot exercise his or her power and authority for any reason, the 

vice-chairperson shall chair the meeting on behalf of the chairperson. If there is no 

vice-chairperson or the vice-chairperson is also on leave or cannot exercise his or 

her power and authority for any reason, the chairperson shall appoint a standing 

director to act on his or her behalf. If there is no standing director, the chairperson 

shall appoint a director to act on his or her behalf. In case that the chairperson 

does not appoint any deputy, a deputy to act on behalf of the chairperson shall be 

elected by standing directors or directors among themselves.  

The standing director or director to act on behalf of the preceding chairperson 

shall have served the Company as a standing director or director for more than six 

months, and be familiar with the Company’s financial and business status. The 

same shall apply to the chairperson who is a representative of an institutional 

director.  

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting 

shall be chaired by the chairperson, attended by a majority of the total Board 

directors and at least one representative of each functional committee. The 

attendance status shall be recorded in the shareholders’ meeting minutes book.  

When a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the convener not from the Board of 

Directors, the convener in question shall chair the meeting. If there are two or 

more than two conveners for a same meeting, the chairperson of the meeting shall 

be elected from among the conveners.  
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The Company may invite its appointed attorneys and CPA or other related 

personnel to attend a shareholders’ meeting as a guest as the case may be. 

Article 8: The Company shall record the entire proceedings of a shareholders’ meeting, from 

shareholders’ check-in, the check-in process and the course of the meeting, to the 

voting and vote counting process, in an audio and video format without any 

interruption.  

The preceding audio and video data shall be retained for at least one year. 

However, in case of any litigation filed by a shareholder in accordance with 

Article 189 of the Company Act, the audio or video evidence shall be kept until 

closure of such litigation.  

          Where a shareholders meeting is held online, the Company shall keep records of 

shareholder registration, sign-in, check-in, questions raised, votes cast and results 

of votes counted by the Company, and continuously audio and video record, 

without interruption, the proceedings of the virtual-only meeting from beginning 

to end.  

          The information and audio and video recording in the preceding paragraph shall 

be properly kept by the Company during the entirety of its existence, and copies 

of the audio and video recording shall be provided to and kept by the party 

appointed to handle matters of the virtual-only meeting.  

          In case of a virtual-only shareholders meeting, the Company is advised to audio 

and video record the back-end operation interface of the virtual-only meeting 

platform. 

Article 9: The attendance status of a shareholders’ meeting shall be calculated according to 

the number of the shares represented by the shareholders attending the 

shareholders’ meeting, in which the calculation shall cover the shares indicated in 

the attendance book or according to the attendance cards turned in by the meeting 

attendants, and the shares checked in on the virtual-only meeting platform, plus 

the voting shares exercised in writing or in an electronic format. 

When it is time for a meeting, the chairperson shall immediately call the meeting 

to order, and disclose information concerning the number of nonvoting shares and 

number of shares represented by shareholders attending the meeting. However, if 

the number of shares held by the shareholders present at the meeting has yet to 

constitute a majority of the total issued shares, the chairperson may announce 

postponement of the meeting, but the postponement of the said meeting is limited 

to two times only, whereas the total postponement time shall not exceed one hour. 

If a meeting has been postponed for two times and the shares held by the 

shareholders present at the meeting are still less than one-third of the total issued 

shares, the chairperson may abort the meeting. In the event of a virtual-only 

shareholders meeting, the Company shall also declare the meeting aborted at the 

virtual-only meeting platform. 

If, after preceding two times of postponement, a meeting has yet to constitute the 

quorum but the shareholders representing one-third of the total issued shares are 

present, a provisional resolution can be adopted according to Paragraph 1 of 

Article 175 of the Company Act, and the notice of the provisional resolution shall 

be served to respective shareholders for a shareholders’ meeting to be convened 

again within one month. In the event of a virtual-only shareholders meeting, 

shareholders intending to attend the meeting online shall re-register to this 

Corporation in accordance with Article 6.  
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          Before the end of the meeting in question, if the number of the shares held by the 

shareholders present represents a majority of the total issued shares, the 

chairperson may put forward the adopted provisional resolution and request re-

adoption of the resolution at the meeting in accordance with Article 174 of the 

Company Act.  

Article 10: If a shareholders’ meeting is called by the Board of Directors, the meeting agenda 

shall be set up by the Board of Directors, votes shall be cast on each separate 

proposal in the agenda (including extraordinary motions and amendments to the 

original proposals set out in the agenda), and the meeting shall be conducted 

according to the scheduled agenda, which shall not be changed unless resolved by 

the shareholders’ meeting.  

If a shareholders’ meeting is called by any other person outside the Board of 

Directors who has the convening right, the preceding provision shall apply.  

Without resolution, the chairperson shall not adjourn a meeting before closure of 

the motions (including extemporary motions) in the agenda arranged according to 

the preceding two paragraphs. If the chairperson violates the meeting rules by 

adjourning a meeting, other members of the Board of Directors may follow the 

legal procedure and quickly come forward to help the attending shareholders elect 

a chairperson by the resolution adopted by a majority of the shareholders present, 

and continue the meeting.  

For any motions, amendments proposed by shareholders or extemporary motions, 

the chairperson shall allow sufficient explanation and discussion, close the 

discussion when he or she believes that it’s time for resolution, and put them to 

the vote, and schedule sufficient time for voting.  

Article 11: Those shareholders who wish to speak in a shareholders’ meeting shall first fill 

out a speech note stating their speech subject, their shareholder account number 

(or attendance card number) and their account name. The chairperson shall then 

decide their speech order.  

Those shareholders who submit a speech note but do not actually give any speech, 

shall be deemed not having given any speech. In the case that the speech content 

is not consistent with what is stated in the speech note, the speech content shall 

prevail.  

Unless otherwise permitted by the chairperson, a shareholder shall not speak more 

than two times for a same motion and each time of speech shall not exceed 5 

minutes. If the speech given by any shareholder violates the aforesaid stipulation 

or is beyond the agenda scope, the chairperson may stop the speech.  

When a shareholder is giving a speech, other shareholders shall not interrupt the 

speech unless otherwise obtaining the consent from the chairperson. The 

chairperson shall stop any violation.  

If an institutional shareholder designates two or more than two representatives to 

attend a shareholders’ meeting, only one representative is allowed to speak for a 

same motion.  

After the speech of a shareholder, the chairperson may respond to it on his or her 

own, or designate an appropriate person to respond.  

          Where a virtual-only shareholders meeting is convened, shareholders attending 

the virtual-only meeting online may raise questions in writing at the virtual-only 

meeting platform from the chairperson declaring the meeting open until the 
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chairperson declaring the meeting adjourned. No more than two questions for the 

same proposal may be raised. Each question shall contain no more than 200 

words. The regulations in paragraphs 1 to 5 do not apply.  

          As long as questions raised in accordance with the preceding paragraph are not in 

violation of the regulations or beyond the scope of a proposal, it is advisable the 

questions be disclosed to the public at the virtual-only meeting platform.  

Article 12: The resolution of a shareholders’ meeting shall be calculated according to the 

voting shares.  

For the resolution of a shareholders’ meeting, the shares held by the shareholders 

without the voting right shall not be included in the total number of the issued 

shares.  

Those shareholders who have conflict of interests with the meeting agenda, which 

may adversely affect the Company’s interests, are not allowed to participate in 

any resolution. In addition, they are also not allowed to represent other 

shareholders to exercise their voting right.  

The number of the aforesaid shares not allowed to be used to exercise the voting 

right shall not be included in the votes given by the attending shareholders.  

Except for the trust business or the stock affairs service agency approved by the 

securities competent authorities, if a person is simultaneously entrusted by two or 

more than two shareholders, the votes represented by him or her shall not exceed 

3% of the total issued shares, and the excess votes, if any, shall not be calculated.  

Article 13: Each share held by a shareholder is entitled to one vote, but it is not limited to 

those shareholders whose voting right is restricted or the ones having no voting 

right as stated in Paragraph 2 of Article 179 of the Company Act. 

When holding a shareholders’ meeting, it shall adopt exercise of voting rights by 

electronic format and may adopt exercise of voting rights by written format. When 

using the written or electronic format to exercise the voting right, the format shall 

be stated on the notification of the shareholders’ meeting. Those shareholders who 

exercise their voting right in a written or electronic format shall be deemed to 

have attended the shareholders’ meeting in person. However, for the extemporary 

motions and amendments to the original motions of the shareholders’ meeting in 

question, those shareholders shall be deemed abstention in participation, it is 

therefore advisable that the Company avoid the submission of extraordinary 

motions and amendments to original proposals. 

For those that exercise their voting right with the preceding written or electronic 

format in a meeting, their intent expression shall arrive at the Company at least 

two days prior to the shareholders’ meeting. When there is any repetition of the 

intent expression, the first one arriving at the Company shall prevail. However, it 

is not limited to the situation where the revocation of the prior intent expression is 

declared. For those shareholders who wish to attend a shareholders’ meeting in 

person or online, after exercising their voting right in a written or electronic 

format, they shall revoke the aforesaid intent expression by using the same format 

as they used for exercising the voting right at least two days prior to the 

shareholders’ meeting. In case of overdue revocation, the written or electronic 

format shall prevail for exercising the voting right. In the case that the written or 

electronic format is used to exercise the voting right while the shareholder also 

entrusted a representative with a letter of proxy to attend the shareholders’ 
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meeting, the voting right exercised by the attending representative shall prevail.  

Except otherwise stated in the Company Act or the Company’s Articles of 

Incorporation, a resolution shall be adopted by a majority of the votes represented 

by the shareholders present at the meeting. When resolving a motion, if no 

objection from the shareholders present after inquired by the chairperson, the 

resolution shall be deemed to be adopted, and shall have the same effect as the 

voting made with the ballot casting method. The resolution can also be made 

through shareholders’ ballot casting case by case after the chairperson or his or her 

designated personnel announce the total voting shares entitled by the attending 

shareholders. Also, shareholders’ consent, objection and abstention results shall be 

posted on the Market Observation Post System. 

For any amendment or replacement of a same motion, the chairperson shall decide 

the sequence of the resolutions by including the original motion. If any of the 

resolutions is adopted, the others shall be deemed to be vetoed and no future 

voting shall be required.  

Ballot examiners and ballot counters shall be designated by the chairperson, in 

which the ballot examiners shall be shareholders.  

Ballot calculation for a shareholders’ meeting’s resolution or election motion shall 

be publicly conducted on the site where the shareholders’ meeting is held, and the 

voting results, including the statistical weighted voting shares, shall be announced 

on the spot and recorded in the meeting minutes accordingly. When the Company 

convenes a virtual-only shareholders meeting, after the chairperson declares the 

meeting open, shareholders attending the meeting online shall cast votes on 

proposals and elections on the virtual-only meeting platform before the 

chairperson announces the voting session ends or will be deemed abstained from 

voting. In the event of a virtual-only shareholders meeting, votes shall be counted 

at once after the chairperson announces the voting session ends, and results of 

votes and elections shall be announced immediately. When the Company 

convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting, if shareholders who have registered to 

attend the meeting online in accordance with Article 6 decide to attend the 

physical shareholders meeting in person, they shall revoke their registration two 

days before the shareholders meeting in the same manner as they registered. If 

their registration is not revoked within the time limit, they may only attend the 

shareholders meeting online. When shareholders exercise voting rights by 

correspondence or electronic means, unless they have withdrawn the declaration 

of intent and attended the shareholders meeting online, except for extraordinary 

motions, they will not exercise voting rights on the original proposals or make any 

amendments to the original proposals or exercise voting rights on amendments to 

the original proposal.  

Article 14:  Any director election at a shareholders’ meeting shall be processed in accordance 

with the Company’s relevant election regulations, and the election results, 

including the director-elect list and weighted voting shares, and the director-elect 

list and weighted voting shares not elected, shall be announced on the spot.  

The ballots cast for the preceding election matters shall be sealed and signed by 

the ballot examiner and properly retained for at least one year. However, those 

that are involved in the litigation filed by a shareholder in accordance with Article 

189 of the Company Act shall be retained until closure of such litigation. 
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Article 15: All matters resolved in a shareholders’ meeting shall be recorded in the meeting’s 

minutes book, which shall be signed or sealed by the chairperson and distributed 

to respective shareholders within 20 days after the shareholders’ meeting. The 

production and distribution of the meeting’s minutes book may be processed in an 

electronic form.  

For distribution of the preceding meeting’s minutes book, the Company may 

transmit the meeting’s minutes book to the Market Observation Post System as 

the announcement method.  

The items including the meeting date and place, chairperson’s name, resolution 

method, main points of the meeting proceedings and their voting results 

(including the number of voting rights), and disclose the number of voting rights 

won by each candidate in the event of an election of directors, shall be literally 

recorded in the meeting minutes book, which shall be retained during the 

existence of the Company. Where a virtual-only shareholders meeting is 

convened, in addition to the particulars to be included in the meeting minutes as 

described in the preceding paragraph, the start time and end time of the 

shareholders meeting, how the meeting is convened, the chairperson's and 

secretary's name, and actions to be taken in the event of disruption to the virtual-

only meeting platform or participation in the meeting online due to natural 

disasters, accidents or other force majeure events, and how issues are dealt with 

shall also be included in the minutes. When convening a virtual-only shareholder 

meeting, in compliance with the requirements in the preceding paragraph, the 

Company shall specify in the meeting minutes alternative measures available to 

shareholders with difficulties in attending a virtual-only shareholders meeting 

online.  

Article 16: The Company shall prepare a statistical list for the shares solicited by solicitors 

and the ones represented by the entrusted proxies and the number of shares 

represented by shareholders attending the meeting by correspondence or 

electronic means, and disclose it at the meeting site on the shareholders’ meeting 

day.  

          In the event a virtual-only shareholders meeting, the Company shall upload the 

above meeting materials to the virtual-only meeting platform at least 30 minutes 

before the meeting starts, and keep this information disclosed until the end of the 

meeting. During the Company's virtual-only shareholders meeting, when the 

meeting is called to order, the total number of shares represented at the meeting 

shall be disclosed on the virtual-only meeting platform. The same shall apply 

whenever the total number of shares represented at the meeting and a new tally of 

votes is released during the meeting. 

If the resolution adopted at a shareholders’ meeting is regulated by law or 

stipulated by Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation as material information, the 

Company shall transmit the content to Market Observation Post System within the 

regulated time limit. 

Article 17: Those who work on the shareholders’ meeting site for handling meeting related 

affairs, shall wear an ID card or arm badge. 

The chairperson may direct disciplinary personnel or security personnel to 

maintain order of a meeting. When maintaining order of the meeting, those 

disciplinary personnel and security personnel shall wear a badge or ID card 



 

- 17 - 

bearing the words of “disciplinary personnel”.  

At a meeting site equipped with the public address system, the chairperson may 

stop any speech made by the shareholder who does not use the public address 

system provided by the Company.  

For those shareholders who violate the meeting rules, disobey the correction from 

the chairperson, obstruct the meeting proceedings and ignore the prohibition, the 

chairperson may have the disciplinary personnel or security personnel ask them to 

leave the meeting site.  

Article 18: During a meeting, the chairperson may announce recess at the time he or she 

considers appropriate. In case of force majeure, the chairperson may decide to 

temporarily suspend the meeting, and announce the time of meeting resumption 

depending on the situation.  

Before closure of the motions (including extemporary motions) set in the agenda 

of a shareholders’ meeting, if the meeting place cannot continue to be used, the 

Board of Shareholders shall resolve to find another place for continuation of the 

meeting. 

According to Article 182 of the Company Act, the Board of Shareholders may 

resolve to postpone a meeting and have it held within five days or continue the 

meeting.  

Article 19: In the event of a virtual-only shareholders meeting, the Company shall disclose 

real-time results of votes and election immediately after the end of the voting 

session on the virtual-only meeting platform according to the regulations, and this 

disclosure shall continue at least 15 minutes after the chairperson has announced 

the meeting adjourned. 

Article 20: When the Company convenes a virtual-only shareholders meeting, both the 

chairperson and secretary shall be in the same location, and the chairperson shall 

declare the address of their location when the meeting is called to order. 

Article 21: In the event of a virtual-only shareholders meeting, the Company may offer a 

simple connection test to shareholders prior to the meeting, and provide relevant 

real-time services before and during the meeting to help resolve communication 

technical issues. In the event of a virtual-only shareholders meeting, when 

declaring the meeting open, the chairperson shall also declare, unless under a 

circumstance where a meeting is not required to be postponed to or resumed at 

another time under Article 44-20, paragraph 4 of the Regulations Governing the 

Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, if the virtual-only 

meeting platform or participation in the virtual-only meeting is obstructed due to 

natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events before the chairperson 

has announced the meeting adjourned, and the obstruction continues for more than 

30 minutes, the meeting shall be postponed to or resumed on another date within 

five days, in which case Article 182 of the Company Act shall not apply. For a 

meeting to be postponed or resumed as described in the preceding paragraph, 

shareholders who have not registered to participate in the affected shareholders 

meeting online shall not attend the postponed or resumed session. For a meeting 

to be postponed or resumed under the second paragraph, the number of shares 

represented by, and voting rights and election rights exercised by the shareholders 

who have registered to participate in the affected shareholders meeting and have 

successfully signed in the meeting, but do not attend the postponed or resumed 
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session, at the affected shareholders meeting, shall be counted towards the total 

number of shares, number of voting rights and number of election rights 

represented at the postponed or resumed session. During a postponed or resumed 

session of a shareholders meeting held under the second paragraph, no further 

discussion or resolution is required for proposals for which votes have been cast 

and counted and results have been announced, or list of elected directors. When 

the Company convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting, and the virtual-only 

meeting cannot continue as described in second paragraph, if the total number of 

shares represented at the meeting, after deducting those represented by 

shareholders attending the virtual-only shareholders meeting online, still meets the 

minimum legal requirement for a shareholder meeting, then the shareholders 

meeting shall continue, and not postponement or resumption thereof under the 

second paragraph is required. Under the circumstances where a meeting should 

continue as in the preceding paragraph, the shares represented by shareholders 

attending the virtual-only meeting online shall be counted towards the total 

number of shares represented by shareholders present at the meeting, provided 

these shareholders shall be deemed abstaining from voting on all proposals on 

meeting agenda of that shareholders meeting. When postponing or resuming a 

meeting according to the second paragraph, the Company shall handle the 

preparatory work based on the date of the original shareholders meeting in 

accordance with the requirements listed under Article 44-20, paragraph 7 of the 

Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public 

Companies. For dates or period set forth under Article 12, second half, and Article 

13, paragraph 3 of Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at 

Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies, and Article 44-5, paragraph 2, Article 

44-15, and Article 44-17, paragraph 1 of the Regulations Governing the 

Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, the Company hall 

handle the matter based on the date of the shareholders meeting that is postponed 

or resumed under the second paragraph.  

Article 22: When convening a virtual-only shareholders meeting, the Company shall provide 

appropriate alternative measures available to shareholders with difficulties in 

attending a virtual-only shareholders meeting online. 

Article 23: The Rules shall be implemented after adoption by the Board of Shareholders. The 

same shall apply in case of any revision. 
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Attachment 2：Articles of Incorporation 

 
Articles of Incorporation  

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.  

Amended in the regular shareholders’ meeting held on June 21, 2022 

Chapter 1 General Provisions 

Article 1  The name of the Company is Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd., which is incorporated 

pursuant to the Company Act.  

Article 2  The businesses engaged by the Company are as follows:  

1. F108031 Wholesale of Drugs, Medical Goods 
2. F113010 Wholesale of Machinery 
3. F113020 Wholesale of Household Appliance 
4. F107080 Wholesale of Environment Medicines 
5. F113030 Wholesale of Precision Instruments 
6. F113050 Wholesale of Computing and Business Machinery Equipment 
7. F113070 Wholesale of Telecom Instruments 
8. F117010 Wholesale of Fire Fighting Equipment 
9. F118010 Wholesale of Computer Software 
10. F401010 International Trade 
11. I301010 Software Design Services 
12. CB01030 Pollution Controlling Equipment Manufacturing 
13. F113100 Wholesale of Pollution Controlling Equipment 
14. F213100 Retail Sale of Pollution Controlling Equipment 
15. F108021 Wholesale of Drugs and Medicines 
16. H703100 Real Estate Rental and Leasing 
17. JA02010 Electric Appliance and Audiovisual Electric Products Repair Shops 
18. IF01010 Fire Fighting Equipment Overhauling 
19. JA02990 Other Repair Shops 
20. JE01010 Rental and Leasing Business 
21. F401021 Restrained Telecom Radio Frequency Equipment and Materials 

Import 
22. F208040 Retail Sale of Cosmetics 
23. C802041 Drugs and Medicines Manufacturing  
24. C802060  Animal Use Medicine Manufacturing  
25. C802100 Cosmetics Manufacturing  
26. CF01011 Medical Materials and Equipment Manufacturing  
27. F208031 Retail sale of Medical Equipments  
28. ZZ99999 All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, 

except those that are subject to special approval. 

 

Article 3  The Company may externally provide guarantee as required by business needs.  

Article 4  If the Company is a limited liability shareholder of another company, its total 

investment amount shall be free from the restriction of not exceeding 40% of its 

paid-in capital as prescribed by Article 13 of the Company Act.  
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Chapter 2 Shares  

Article 5  The Company’s headquarters is located in New Taipei City, and, as resolved by the 

Board of Directors, it may establish branch sales stores, business offices and other 

types of branch offices in the Republic of China or foreign countries, as necessary.  

Article 6  The Company’s total capital is two billion NT dollars, which is divided into two 

hundred million shares with a face value of ten NT dollars per share. For the 

unissued shares, the Board of Directors is authorized to issue them in installments as 

required by business needs. Out of the preceding total capital, one hundred million 

NT dollars is reserved for exercise of the warrants covering employee stock option 

warrants, corporate bonds with warrants and preferred shares with warrants, which 

may be issued in installments.  

Employees that are eligible to subscribe for share subscription warrant, restricted 

employee shares, new shares or buy back shares in accordance with the law for 

employees may include employees of parents or subsidiaries of the company meeting 

certain specific requirements.  

Article 6-1 The subscription price of employee stock option warrants issued by the Company is 

free from the restriction of relevant laws and regulations. However, it shall be 

adopted by more than two-thirds of the votes of the shareholders who are present at 

the meeting and represent a majority of the total issued shares, and declared in 

installments within one year after the shareholders’ meeting resolution day.  

Article 6-2 The Company may repurchase its treasury stock and transfer it to its employees at a 

price lower than the average repurchase price. However, it shall be adopted by more 

than two-thirds of the votes of the shareholders who are present at the latest 

shareholders’ meeting and represent a majority of the total issued shares, and the 

implementation shall be made in accordance with relevant laws and regulations.   

Article 7 The Company’s stock is registered shares, which shall be affixed with the signature 

or seal by a director representing a company and issued after certification by law. 

The stock shall be produced in accordance with Article 162 of the Company Act. 

When issuing new shares, such new shares may be exempt from printing share 

certificates, but shall be registered with the Centralized Securities Depository 

Enterprise.  

Article 8 The Company shall commission its stock affairs to a stock affairs service agency. 

Unless otherwise prescribed by laws and regulations and the Articles of 

Incorporation, it shall be processed in accordance with the “Regulations Governing 

the Administration of Shareholders Services of Public Companies” promulgated by 

the competent authorities.  

Article 9  If the stock is transferred, or re-issued due to loss, the Company may collect a 

service fee and revenue stamps shall be affixed.   

Article 10 Any change of the records in the shareholders list shall be suspended within 60 days 

prior to a regular shareholders’ meeting, 30 days prior to a special shareholders’ 

meeting or 5 days prior to the base day determined by the Company for 

dividend/bonus or other benefit distribution. 

 

Chapter 3 Shareholders’ Meetings 

Article 11 The Company’s shareholders’ meetings come in two types: regular shareholders’ 

meetings and special shareholders’ meeting. A regular shareholders’ meeting shall be 
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convened by the Board of Directors by law and held within six months after the end 

of each fiscal year, whereas a special shareholders’ meeting shall be convened 

whenever necessary. If agreed by the counterparty, the notification of a shareholders’ 

meeting can be made via e-mail. For those shareholders who hold less than 1,000 

shares of the Company’s stock, the Company may notify them via announcement. 

The company 's shareholders’ meeting can be held by means of visual 

communication network or other methods promulgated by the central competent 

authority. 

In case a shareholders’ meeting is proceeded via visual communication network, then 

the shareholders taking part in such a virtual-only meeting shall be deemed to have 

attended the meeting in person. 

Article 12 If a shareholder cannot attend a shareholders’ meeting for any reason, he or she may 

appoint a proxy to attend the meeting on behalf of him or her in accordance with 

Article 177 of the Company Act, Paragraph 1 of Article 25-1 of the Securities and 

Exchange Act and the “Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at 

Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies”.  

Article 13 For the Company’s shareholders, each share is entitled to one vote, but it is not 

limited to those that are restricted or have no voting right as listed in Paragraph 2 of 

Article 179 of the Company Act.  

Article 14 Unless otherwise prescribed by the Company Act or stated by relevant laws and 

regulations, a resolution of a shareholders’ meeting shall be adopted by a majority 

vote of the shareholders present at the meeting and represent more than half of the 

total number of the issued shares, before implementation.  

Article 15 All of the matters resolved in a shareholders’ meeting shall be recorded in the 

meeting minutes book which shall be signed or sealed by the chairperson and 

distributed to respective shareholders within 20 days after the meeting. The 

production and distribution of the meeting minutes book may be processed in an 

electronic form. The Company may also distribute the meeting minutes book via 

announcement. The meeting minutes book, attending shareholders’ attendance book 

and the letters of proxies shall be retained in the Company according to the laws and 

regulations.  

Article 15-1 In case that the Company plans to revoke its public offering plan, it shall put it 

forth to the Board of Shareholders for resolution, and shall remain unchanged 

during the listing period.  

 

Chapter 4 Directors and managerial officers 

Article 16 The Company shall have nine to eleven directors and at least three independent 

directors with a term of three years. They shall be elected from those who have 

behavioral capacity in the Board of Shareholders and are eligible for re-election. The 

number of directors shall be determined by the Board meeting. The candidate 

nomination system shall be adopted for the election of the Company’s directors and 

independent directors, in which shareholders shall elect directors and independent 

directors according to the lists of director candidates. In case that a director cannot be 

present at a meeting for any reason, he or she shall appoint another director by law to 

attend the meeting on his or her behalf. The total shareholding ratio of the entire 

body of the Company’s directors shall be processed in accordance with the 
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regulations set up by the securities management competent authorities.  

The matters regarding independent directors’ professional qualifications, 

shareholdings, restrictions on holding of concurrent positions, nomination, election 

method and other matters required to be followed shall be processed in accordance 

with the relevant regulations stipulated by the securities competent authorities. 

Article 16-1 According to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company shall 

set up an audit committee. The audit committee shall be constituted by the entire 

body of independent directors, and the number of its members shall not be less 

than three, in which one of them shall be the convener and at least one of them 

shall be equipped with accounting or financial expertise. The audit committee or 

its members shall be responsible for exercising a supervisor’s power and authority 

as required by the Company Act, Securities and Exchange Act and other relevant 

laws and regulations. 

Article 17 The Board of Directors is constituted by directors; a chairperson or a vice-

chairperson shall be elected from among directors by passing a majority vote of the 

directors who are present at the meeting and represent more than two-thirds of the 

total directors. The chairperson shall externally represent the Company, and his or 

her rights shall be subject to laws, regulations, the Company’s Article of 

Incorporation, and the resolutions adopted by the Board of Shareholders and the 

Board of Directors.  

Article 17-1 The notification of convening a Board meeting shall be sent to respective 

directors at least seven days prior to the meeting. However, in case of any 

emergency, the Company may convene a Board meeting at any time.  

The Company may convene its Board meeting by means of a written notice, e-

mail or facsimile. 

Article 18 The functions and authorities of the Board of Directors are as follows:  

1. Determine the Company’s business directions.  

2. Review budgets and settlements of final accounts.  

3. Draft plans for profits distribution and loss recovering.  

4. Lay down the capital increase or decrease plan. 

5. Other authorities granted by statutory laws and regulations and the Board of 

Shareholders. 

Article 19  Unless otherwise prescribed by the Company Act, any of the resolutions of the Board 

of Directors shall be adopted by a majority of the directors who are present at the 

meeting and represent a majority of the entire body of directors before 

implementation. All of the resolution matters shall be recorded in the meeting 

minutes which shall be signed or sealed by the chairperson and retained in the 

Company.  

Article 20 In case that the chairperson is on leave or cannot exercise his or her power and 

authority for any reason, a deputy shall be selected in accordance with Paragraph 3 

of Article 208 of the Company Act. If the Board of Directors adopts a video meeting, 

those directors who attend the video meeting shall be deemed to have attended the 

meeting in person.  

Article 21 According to the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors, the Company shall 

have a general chief executive officer in charge of the business operation and 

operating policies for the Company and all of its associates and joint ventures. In 
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addition, the Company may also have a general manger and several deputy general 

managers, and their appointment, dismissal and remuneration shall be processed in 

accordance with Article 29 of the Company Act. 

Article 22 The Company shall pay a transportation allowance fee to its directors for their 

attendance of the meetings of the Board of Directors.  

The Company shall pay remuneration to its directors for their duty execution 

regardless of gain or loss of the Company’s business. The Board of Directors shall be 

authorized to determine the remuneration according to the status of a director’s duty 

execution and by referring to the practice of the peer group. 

Article 22-1 The Company shall authorize its Board of Directors to purchase liability insurance 

for its directors within their term of office and according to their duty execution 

scope. 

Article 22-2 The salaries, remuneration and transportation allowance fees of directors shall be 

reviewed by the remuneration committee. 

 

Chapter 5 Accounting 

Article 23 The Company’s fiscal year is from January 1 to December 31, and the financial 

statements shall be processed at the end of each fiscal year. 

Article 24 At the end of each fiscal year, the Company’s Board of Directors shall prepare (1) 

the business report (2) the financial statements (3) the proposal of profits distribution 

or loss recovering, and submit the statements and documents above to the audit 

committee for examination, to the Board of Directors for approval, and finally to the 

regular shareholders’ meeting for acknowledgement. 

Article 25 If the Company has any annual profit, it shall allocate an amount no less than 1% for 

employee compensation and no more than 5% as director remuneration. However, in 

the circumstance where the Company has accumulated loss, an allowance for the 

loss shall be set aside in advance. 

The preceding employee compensation shall be distributed by stock or cash, and the 

recipients shall cover the employees of the subordinate companies meeting the terms 

set up by the Board of Directors. The preceding director remuneration shall be paid 

by cash only.  

The preceding two issues shall be resolved by the Board of Directors, and reported to 

the Board of Shareholders.  

Article 25-1  If the Company has any surplus, the tax in its financial statements will be paid 

first, it shall first use the profit to cover accumulated loss, followed by setting 

10% aside as the legal reserve. However, it is not limited to the situation where 

the legal reserve already reaches the Company’s total paid-in capital. 

Furthermore, a special reserve shall be allocated or reversed in accordance with 

operational requirements, statutory laws and regulations or competent authorities’ 

stipulations. Afterwards, the Board of Directors shall draft a profits distribution 

proposal for the remaining earnings along with the beginning undistributed 

earnings cumulative earnings available for distribution and put it forth to the 

shareholders’ meeting for resolution of shareholder dividend and bonus 

distribution. 

The Company authorizes the Board of Directors to distribute a portion or all of 

dividends, bonuses or legal reserve and capital surplus in cash by resolution 

adopted by a majority in a meeting attended by two-thirds or more of the 
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Directors, and the distribution shall then be reported to the shareholders' meeting. 

Article 26 The Company sets up its dividend policy in conjunction with its current and future 

development plan and by taking the investment environment, capital requirements 

and local and foreign competition status into account, whereas the Company also 

concurrently considers shareholders’ interests. The annual dividend payable to 

shareholders from the cumulative distributable surplus shall be not less than 20% of 

current year after-tax profit. The shareholder dividend and bonus can be distributed 

by either cash or stock, in which the cash dividend shall be no less than 20% of the 

total dividend amount.   

 

Chapter 6 Supplementary Provisions 

Article 27 Other matters not covered by the Articles of Incorporation shall be subject to the 

Company Act. 

Article 28 The Articles of Incorporation was instituted on January 27, 1988 

1st revision was made on June 28, 1988 

2nd revision was made on March 23, 1989 

3rd revision was made on March 7, 1990 

4th revision was made on March 15, 1991 

5th revision was made on May 15, 1991 

6th revision was made on September 18, 1991 

7th revision was made on September 18, 1993 

8th revision was made on December 1, 1994 

9th revision was made on January 11, 1997 

10th revision was made on February 4, 1997 

11th revision was made on April 21, 1997 

12th revision was made on April 11, 1998 

13th revision was made on May 15, 1998 

14th revision was made on April 20, 1999 

15th revision was made on June 16, 2000 

16th revision was made on April 30, 2001 

17th revision was made on November 12, 2001 

18th revision was made on May 20, 2002 

19th revision was made on March 31, 2003 

20th revision was made on May 31, 2004 

21st revision was made on June 17, 2005 

22nd revision was made on June 14, 2006 

23rd revision was made on June 15, 2007; however, the amended articles of Articles 

6-1 and 6-2 regarding the expensing of employee bonus shall become effective 

from the date of announcement by the competent authorities (January 1, 2008).  

24th revision was made on October 12, 2007 

25th revision was made on June 13, 2008 

26th revision was made on June 10, 2009 

27th revision was made on June 10, 2009 

28th revision was made on June 15, 2010 

29th revision was made on June 15, 2011 

30th revision was made on June 18, 2012 
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31st revision was made on June 14, 2013 

32nd revision was made on June 24, 2014 

33rd revision was made on June 16, 2016 

34rd revision was made on June 16, 2017 

35rd revision was made on June 18, 2019.  

36rd revision was made on June 18, 2020 

37rd revision was made on June 21, 2022  
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Attachment 3：Business Report 
 

Business Report  
 

Dear Shareholders, 

 

First of all, I would like to thank you for sparing the time to attend the Company’s annual 

shareholders’ meeting. It provides us, the management team, with an opportunity to present the 

operational achievements and future prospects of the company. On behalf of the management team 

and all employees, I sincerely welcome and invite your valuable feedback and suggestions. 

 

Over the past three years, the global spread of the COVID-19 pandemic has caused 

significant turbulence in major economies worldwide. Taiwan's economy, however, has been 

relatively stable due to effective pandemic control measures. As we enter the post-pandemic 

recovery era, uncertain risks and changing factors persist. Factors such as the hawkish stance of 

the US Federal Reserve leading to interest rate hikes, the energy crisis triggered by the Russia-

Ukraine conflict, and the economic slowdown resulting from the US-China rivalry have created a 

challenging global economic environment characterized by "high prices," "high inflation," and 

"low growth." However, as a leading healthcare integrated provider in Taiwan, our business is 

relatively less affected compared to other industries, representing steady growth. We will leverage 

this advantageous position to maintain our competitive edge and capitalize on future opportunities. 

 
The Company’s 2022 operating results and 2023 business plan are reported as follows:  
 
I. Report on the 2022 operating results 

1. 2022 operating results 

(1) Individual statement of comprehensive income  

Unit: NT dollars in thousands 

Item 2022 2021 
Increase 

(decrease) 
percentage 

Operating revenue 4,654,419 4,373,194 6.43% 

Gross profit 785,948 719,410 9.25% 

Net operating 

income 
377,167 344,234 9.57% 

Non-operating 

income and 

expenses 
409,616 371,835 10.16% 

Profit before tax 786,783 716,069 9.88% 

Profit after tax 667,453 607,149 9.93% 

Other 

comprehensive 

income (loss) 
289,185 (28,494) 1,114.90% 

Total 

comprehensive 

income 
956,638 578,655 65.32% 
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i. The increase in operating revenue, gross profit, and net operating income 
compared to the previous year were mainly due to the increase in sales of 
hemodialysis, surgery products and home appliances, and the increase in gross 
profit was due to the depreciation of import foreign exchange rate and the growth 
in sales of high-margin products. 

ii. The increase in non-operating income and expenses compared to the previous 

year was mainly attributable to the influence of “Share of profit of subsidiaries, 

associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method”. 

iii. The increase in other comprehensive income compared to the previous year was 

mainly attributable to the influence of “Exchange differences on translation” and

“Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint 

ventures accounted for using equity method”. 

  

 (2) Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 

Unit: NT dollars in thousands 

Item 2022 2021 

Increase 

(decrease) 

percentage 

Operating revenue 7,186,828 6,573,152   9.34%  

Gross profit 1,513,112 1,372,619 10.24% 

Net operating 

income 
606,612 595,026 1.95% 

Non-operating 

income and 

expenses 
357,088 278,710 28.12% 

Profit before tax 963,700 873,736 10.30% 

Profit after tax 785,301 722,289 8.72% 

Other 

comprehensive 

income (loss) 
364,266 (35,162) 1,135.97% 

Total 

comprehensive 

income 
1,149,567 687,127 67.30% 

i. The increase in operating revenue compared to the previous year were mainly due 

to the increase in sales of hemodialysis, surgery, aesthetic medical products and 

services; the gross profit increased due to the depreciation of import foreign 

exchange rate and the growth in sales of high-margin aesthetic medical products 

and services, resulting in an increase in gross profit rate.   

ii. The increase in non-operating income and expenses compared to the previous 

year was mainly attributable to the influence of “Share of profit of associates and 

joint ventures accounted for using equity method”. 

iii. The increase in other comprehensive income compared to the previous year was 

mainly attributable to the influence of“Exchange differences on translation” and 

“Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at 

fair value through other comprehensive income”.  

2. Status of budget implementation: this is not applicable since the Company did not 

prepare any financial forecast.  
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3. Status of cash flows 

(1)Individual statement of cash flows 

Unit: NT dollars in thousands 

Item 2022 Description 

Beginning cash 

balance  
507,977 The balance of the 2021 final account. 

Net cash flows from 

operating activities  
204,101 

Mainly resulting from the current year 

profit from operations, and the increase 

in inventory. 

Net cash flows from 

investment activities  
289,326 

Mainly resulting from the increase in 

proceeds from disposal of financial 

asset at fair value through other 

comprehensive income and dividends 

received.  

Net cash used in from 

financing activities  
(498,086) 

Mainly resulting from the cash 

dividends paid. 

Cash balance at the 

end of the year  
503,318 The balance of the 2022 final account. 

 

(2)Consolidated statement of cash flows 

Unit: thousand NT dollars 

Item 2022 Description 

Beginning cash 

balance  
3,072,264 The balance of the 2021 final account. 

Net cash flows from 

operating activities  
637,126 

Mainly resulting from the current year 

profit from operations.  

Net cash used in from 

investment activities  
(690,005) 

Mainly resulting from the acquisition of 

investments accounted for using equity 

method 

Net cash used in from 

financing activities 
(633,889) 

Mainly resulting from the cash 

dividends paid. 

Impact of changes in 

exchange rates  
121,499 Effect of Exchange rate changes. 

Cash balance at the 

end of the year  
2,506,995 The balance of the 2022 final account. 
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4. Analysis and comparison of profitability 

(1) Analysis of individual profitability 

Item 2022 2021 Description 

Return on assets 
(%) 

7.1 6.9  

The increase in profit after tax 

in 2022 mainly resulting from 

the increase in operating 

revenue and the increase in 

“Share of profit of subsidiaries, 

associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using equity 

method”. 

Return on 
equity(%) 

8.4 7.9 

The increase in profit after tax 

in 2022 mainly resulting from 

the increase in operating 

revenue and the increase in 

“Share of profit of subsidiaries, 

associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using equity 

method”.  

Ratio of before-
tax profit to the 
paid-in capital(%) 

53.1 50.7 

The increase in profit before tax 

in 2022 mainly resulting from 

the increase in operating 

revenue and the increase in 

“Share of profit of subsidiaries, 

associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using equity 

method”. 

Net profit margin 

(%) 
14.3 13.9 

The increase in profit after tax 

in 2022 mainly resulting from 

the increase in operating 

revenue and the increase in 

“Share of profit of subsidiaries, 

associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using equity 

method”. 

Basic after-tax 

earnings per share 

(NT$) (note)  
4.50 4.10 

The increase in profit after tax 

in 2022 mainly resulting from 

the increase in operating 

revenue and the increase in 

“Share of profit of subsidiaries, 

associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using equity 

method”. 

Note: analysis made according to the net profit after tax with weighted-average shares outstanding.  
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(2) Analysis of consolidated profitability 

Item 2022 2021 Description 

Return on assets 

(%) 
5.0 5.0 

The return on assets in these 

two years was nearly the same. 

Return on 

equity(%) 
7.8 7.5 

The increase in profit after tax 

in 2022 mainly resulting from 

the increase in“Share of profit 

of associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using equity 

method”. 

Ratio of before-

tax profit to the 

paid-in capital(%) 
65.0 61.9 

The increase in profit before tax 

in 2022 mainly resulting from 

the increase in “Share of profit 

of associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using equity 

method”.  

Net profit margin 
(%) 

10.9 11.0 
The net profit margin in these 

two years was nearly the same. 

Basic after-tax 
earnings per share 
(NT$) (note)  

4.50 4.10 

The increase in profit after tax 

in 2022 mainly resulting from 

the increase in “Share of profit 

of associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using equity 

method”. 

Note: analysis made according to the net profit after tax with weighted-average shares outstanding. 

 

 5. R&D status 

As the Company is not in the manufacturing industry, it has not set up a dedicated 

R&D division. Instead, we rely on our various business departments to expand our 

business scope in the field of medical-related specialties through agency and 

distribution. 
 

II. The 2023 business plan 

(1) Strengthening investment deployment: We will focus on the Taiwanese healthcare 
market and actively seek strategic partners in the medical industry. Through 
reinvestment, we will continue to integrate upstream and downstream medical 
resources, develop a competitive value chain service, and expand our medical 
distribution channels. Additionally, we aim to replicate the success of our experiences 
in Taiwan and extend our presence in overseas healthcare markets. For instance, we 
have entered the manufacturing sector by establishing a dialysis solution factory in 
Malaysia, thereby extending our sources of profitability.  

 
(2) Promoting brand management strategy: We will promote our own brand "Ultra 

Clean," which offers healthy home appliances such as air purifiers "Cubic Air,". In 
addition, we will collaborate with CAREGEN CO., LTD., a renowned biotechnology 
company from South Korea, to promote the DR CYJ brand of hair peptide products 
for hair health. 
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(3) Deepening community long-term care services: In alignment with the government's 
ten-year plan for long-term care, we will actively establish long-term care 
associations, expand community-based long-term care facilities, and develop a 
collaborative network between long-term care and medical services. We will also 
enhance the classification of care service functions and provide an integrated 
healthcare and caregiving model to meet the needs of individuals requiring care. 

 
(4) Developing medical real estate leasing business: Leveraging the expertise of our asset 

management company, we will continue to develop the medical real estate leasing 
business. We will collaborate with affiliated companies to expand our medical 
distribution channels and seek stable, secure, and reasonable real estate targets. Our 
goal is to maximize comprehensive benefits through this approach. 
  

III. Future corporate development strategies 

In response to changes in the market environment, our company aims to increase market 
share in the field of hemodialysis and surgical products. We will also continue to introduce 
medical equipment and consumables, deepen our presence in the healthcare market channels, 
and integrate resources from affiliated companies. By diversifying and extending our 
partnerships strategically, we aim to strengthen our competitiveness and build an integrated 
healthcare industry group. With the values of dedication, discipline, innovation, and 
proactive, we are committed to providing comprehensive health services in the healthcare 
industry. 

Looking ahead to the year 2023, our company and its affiliated investments will 

continue to strive for diversified development. This includes introducing new-generation 

medical products and services, as well as healthy home appliances (both large and small 

appliances, including air purifiers). Additionally, we will promote various aesthetic medical 

products and expand their sales channels, such as Picoway Picosecond Laser, Animers, 

Hyadermis hyaluronic acid dermal fillers, AestheFill collagen-stimulating subdermal fillers, 

Prima advanced dye laser, and DR CYJ hair care brand. The successful launch of Neuronox 

"Ultimate Soft" botulinum toxin injectables from Medytox Inc., a leading biotech company 

in South Korea, has also boosted the sales of their brand's "Yumeishi" hyaluronic acid dermal 

implants. In terms of pharmaceutical logistics, we are committed to deepening our 

partnerships with international pharmaceutical companies, actively seeking product and 

vaccine sales directly from manufacturers. We are also pursuing GMP and GDP certifications 

for medical devices, aiming to expand our presence in the medical field and enhance our 

comprehensive pharmaceutical logistics services. As for long-term care systems, we will 

continue to respond to the government's ten-year Long-term Care 2.0 plan, integrating 

medical, nursing, and home-based services in accordance with the Long-term Care Services 

Act. We aim to establish an integrated care model that combines long-term care and medical 

services, expanding our business in this sector. Additionally, we will closely monitor the 

government's New Southbound Policy and expand our presence in the international 

healthcare market by investing in a dialysis solution factory in Malaysia, in line with the 

group's policies. 

 

IV. The influences of the external competitive environment, regulatory environment and 

overall business environment 

According to a research report by the Industrial Technology Research Institute (ITRI) 
IEK, the global population aged 65 and above is expected to reach its peak between 2011 
and 2029. Population aging has become an irreversible global trend. The National 
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Development Council has also announced that Taiwan is estimated to enter the "super-aged 
society" by international standards by 2025. By 2050, the elderly population is projected to 
reach 7.66 million, accounting for approximately 37.5% of the total population. According 
to data published by the Ministry of the Interior, as of the end of 2022, the elderly population 
(aged 65 and above) in Taiwan has reached 4,085,793, an increase of 146,760 compared to 
the end of 2021, accounting for 17.56% of the total population of 23,264,640. The rapid 
growth of the elderly population necessitates middle-aged individuals to address their own 
retirement life and care for their elders, proactively planning for elderly medical care to 
meet future market needs. Therefore, in line with the government's initiatives, such as the 
"Ten-year Long-term Care Plan," "Long-term Care Service Network Plan," and 
"Enhancement Plan for Long-term Care Capacity," a comprehensive long-term care system 
is being gradually established in stages. 

In recent years, as the economy has grown, the per capita income in our country has 

been steadily increasing. With this economic growth, there has been an increasing emphasis 

on health. Additionally, the aging population and the rise in chronic diseases such as obesity, 

diabetes, and hypertension have led to a significant increase in demand for healthcare and 

related products. In light of these factors, our company can capitalize on the dynamic 

adjustments and growth trends in the healthcare supply and demand structure, thereby 

creating better development opportunities for the healthcare industry. 

 

 

 

 

Fu Hui-Tung, Chairperson 

 

 

Chang, Ming-Cheng, General Manager  

 

 

Chou Cheng-Hsiao, Accounting Chief 
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Attachment 4：Audit Committee’s Review Report  

 

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.  

 

Audit Committee’s Review Report  

 

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company's 2022 Business  

Report, Financial Statements, and proposal for earning distribution. The  

CPA firm of KPMG has audit Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. Financial Statements 

and has issued an audit report relating to the Financial Statements.  

 

The Business Report, Financial Statements, and earning distribution proposal 

have been reviewed and determined to be correct and accurate by the Audit 

Committee members of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.. According to Article 14-4 of 

the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Law, we hereby 

submit this report.  

 

For your adoption. 

 

To  

 

The 2023 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting  

 

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. 

 

 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee: CHANG,WU-YI 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 16, 2023 
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Attachment 5：Amending part of the articles of the Company’s “Regulations 

Governing Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings”  

 

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.  

Comparison Table of Amendments to the Regulations Governing  

Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings 

 

Amended 

Article After Amendment Before Amendment 

Reason for 

amendmen

t 

Article 2 The board of directors shall meet at 
least quarterly. A notice of the reasons 
for convening a board meeting shall 
be given to each director 7 days before 
the meeting is convened. In 
emergency circumstances, however, a 
board meeting may be called on 
shorter notice. 

The notice under the preceding 
paragraph may be given by means of 
electronic transmission. 

All matters set forth under Article 15, 
paragraph 1 of these Rules shall be 
specified in the notice of the reasons for 
convening a board meeting. None of 
those matters may be raised by an 
extraordinary motion.  

 

The board of directors shall meet at 
least quarterly. A notice of the reasons 
for convening a board meeting shall 
be given to each director 7 days before 
the meeting is convened. In 
emergency circumstances, however, a 
board meeting may be called on 
shorter notice. 

The notice under the preceding 
paragraph may be given by means of 
electronic transmission. 

Except in cases of sudden emergency 
or for justifiable reasons, all matters 
set forth under Article 15, paragraph 1 
of these Rules shall be specified in the 
notice of the reasons for convening a 
board meeting. None of those matters 
may be raised by an extraordinary 
motion. 

Modified 

with the 

act. 

Article 12 The Corporate Governance Officer is 
the assigned unit to handle 
administrative matters of the Board 
meeting. The unit shall draft the 
meeting agenda of the Board meeting 
and provide sufficient meeting related 
information and sent with the meeting 
notice. If the director considers the 
information is not  sufficient, shall 
request further information from the 
unit. If the director considers the 
meeting agenda is not sufficient, the 
meeting may be postponed with the 
approval of the Board. 

The General Manager’s Office is the 
assigned unit to handle administrative 
matters of the Board meeting. The unit 
shall draft the meeting agenda of the 
Board meeting and provide sufficient 
meeting related information and sent 
with the meeting notice. If the director 
considers the information is not  
sufficient, shall request further 
information from the unit. If the 
director considers the meeting agenda 
is not sufficient, the meeting may be 
postponed with the approval of the 
Board. 

 

Article 15     The matters listed below as they 
relate to this Corporation shall be raised 
for discussion at a board meeting: 

1. The Corporation's business plan. 

    The matters listed below as they 
relate to this Corporation shall be raised 
for discussion at a board meeting: 

1. The Corporation's business plan. 

Modified 

with the 

act. 



 

- 35 - 

Amended 

Article After Amendment Before Amendment 

Reason for 

amendmen

t 

2. The annual and quartly financial 
reports. 

3. Adoption or amendment of an 
internal control system pursuant to 
Article 14-1 of the Securities and 
Exchange Act and assessment of 
the effectiveness of the internal 
control system. 

4. Adoption or amendment, pursuant 
to Article 36-1 of the Securities and 
Exchange Act, of any handling 
procedures for material financial or 
business transactions, such as the 
acquisition or disposal of assets, 
derivatives trading, loans of funds 
to others, and endorsements or 
guarantees for others. 

5. The offering, issuance, or private 
equity-type securities. 

6. If the Board does not have a 
Managing Director, the 
Chairperson of the Board shall be 
elected or removed. 

7. The appointment or discharge of a 
financial, accounting, or internal 
audit officer. 

8. A donation to a related party or a 
major donation to a non-related 
party, provided that a public-
interest donation of disaster relief 
that is made for a major natural 
disaster may be submitted to the 
following board of directors 
meeting for retroactive 
recognition. 

9. Any matter that, under Article 14-
3 of the Securities and Exchange 
Act or any other law, regulation, 
or bylaw, must be approved by 
resolution at a shareholders 
meeting or board meeting, or any 
material matter as may be 
prescribed by the competent 
authority. 

The term "related party" in 
subparagraph 8 of the preceding 
paragraph means a related party as 
defined in the Regulations Governing 

2. The annual and quartly financial 
reports. 

3. Adoption or amendment of an 
internal control system pursuant to 
Article 14-1 of the Securities and 
Exchange Act and assessment of 
the effectiveness of the internal 
control system. 

4. Adoption or amendment, pursuant 
to Article 36-1 of the Securities and 
Exchange Act, of any handling 
procedures for material financial or 
business transactions, such as the 
acquisition or disposal of assets, 
derivatives trading, loans of funds 
to others, and endorsements or 
guarantees for others. 

5. The offering, issuance, or private 
equity-type securities. 

6. The appointment or discharge of a 

financial, accounting, or internal 

audit officer. 

7. A donation to a related party or a 
major donation to a non-related 
party, provided that a public-
interest donation of disaster relief 
that is made for a major natural 
disaster may be submitted to the 
following board of directors 
meeting for retroactive 
recognition. 

8. Any matter that, under Article 14-
3 of the Securities and Exchange 
Act or any other law, regulation, 
or bylaw, must be approved by 
resolution at a shareholders 
meeting or board meeting, or any 
material matter as may be 
prescribed by the competent 
authority. 

The term "related party" in 

subparagraph 7 of the preceding 

paragraph means a related party as 

defined in the Regulations Governing 

the Preparation of Financial Reports 

by Securities Issuers. The term "major 

donation to a non-related party" means 
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Amended 

Article After Amendment Before Amendment 

Reason for 

amendmen

t 

the Preparation of Financial Reports 
by Securities Issuers. The term "major 
donation to a non-related party" 
means an individual donation, or 
cumulative donations within a 1-year 
period to a single recipient, at an 
amount of NTD100 million or more, 
or at an amount equal to or greater 
than 1 percent of net operating 
revenue or 5 percent of paid-in capital 
as stated in the CPA-attested financial 
report for the most recent year. 

 

an individual donation, or cumulative 

donations within a 1-year period to a 

single recipient, at an amount of 

NTD100 million or more, or at an 

amount equal to or greater than 1 

percent of net operating revenue or 5 

percent of paid-in capital as stated in 

the CPA-attested financial report for 

the most recent year. 

 

Article 19 The provisions of Article 2, paragraph 
2, Articles 5 to 14, Articles 16 and 
Articles 18 apply, mutatis mutandis, to 
this Corporation's meetings of the 
board of managing directors; the 
provisions of Article 2, paragraph 3 
shall apply to the election or dismissal 
of the Chairperson of the Board. 
Provided that when meetings of the 
board of managing directors are held at 
regular intervals of 7 days or less, 
notices of such meetings may be given 
to each managing director before 2 
days before the meeting. 

The provisions of Article 2, paragraph 
2, Articles 5 to 14, Articles 16 and 
Articles 18 apply, mutatis mutandis, to 
this Corporation's meetings of the 
board of managing directors, provided 
that when meetings of the board of 
managing directors are held at regular 
intervals of 7 days or less, notices of 
such meetings may be given to each 
managing director before 2 days before 
the meeting. 

Modified 

with the 

act.  

Article 20 These Rules of Procedure shall be 
adopted by the approval of meeting of 
the board of directors and shall be 
reported to the shareholders meeting. 

These Rules of Procedure shall be 

adopted by the approval of meeting 

of the board of directors and shall be 

reported to the shareholders meeting. 

The board of directors may be 

authorized to adopt, by resolution, 

any future amendments to these 

Rules. 

Revised to 

reflect the 

actual 

operating 

conditions 

of the 

company 
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Attachment 6：Financial Reports   

 
Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

To the Board of Directors of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.: 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.(“the Company”), which 

comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the statements of comprehensive income, 

changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 

a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors (please refer to Other Matter 

paragraph), the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and its cash 

flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial 

Reports by Securities Issuers. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 

Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of 

China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors ’ 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 

the Company in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the 

Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirement. Based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, we believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion  

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 

a separate opinion on these matters. Based on our judgment, the key audit matter that should be disclosed 

in this report is as follows: 

1. Impairment Assessment on Receivables 

Please refer to Note (4)(f) for accounting policies of account receivable allowance provision. 

Description of key audit matter: 

The management of the Company performed its assessment based on the default risk of accounts 

receivable and the rate of expected loss. Because the assessment of impairment loss of receivables 

involves critical accounting estimates, which are subject to the judgment of the management, the 

assessment of the impairment loss of receivables is deemed to be a key audit matter. 
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How the matter was addressed in our audit: 

Our main audit procedures in response to the assessment of the impairment of receivables were 

assessing the reasonableness of the methodology and assumptions used by the management for the 

impairment assessment of receivables and whether the methodology was adopted consistently, testing 

the reasonableness of the information used by the management for assessing the impairment of 

receivables, reviewing the accuracy of the calculation of the allowance for receivables, and evaluating 

the adequacy of the Company’s disclosure for impairment of receivables.  

Other Matter 

We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, which 

represented investment in other entities accounted for using the equity method of the Company. Those 

statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports has been furnished to us, and our opinion, 

insofar as it relates to the amounts included for such entities, is based solely on the report of other auditors. 

The investments in such entities accounted for using the equity method were NT$948,523 thousand and 

NT$138,000 thousand, constituting 10% and 2% of the total assets at December 31, 2022 and 2021, 

respectively, and the related share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for 

using the equity method amounted to NT$33,664 thousand and NT$14,488 thousand, constituting 4% 

and 2% of total profit before tax for the years then ended, respectively. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers 

and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the 

Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise 

professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 

a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment 

in other entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on this financial 

statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain 

solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 



 

Notes to Readers 

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the  statement of financial position, financial 

performance and its cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and 

not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company only financial statements are 

those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China. 

The independent auditors’report and the accompanying parent company only financial statements are the English translation of the 

Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the 

English and Chinese language independent auditors’report and parent company only financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 

a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’report are Tsao-Jen Wu and 

Jun-Guang Chen. 

 

KPMG 

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China) 

March 16, 2023 
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EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. 

 BALANCE SHEETS   

 DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS) 
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  December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

  ASSETS Amount % Amount % 

  Current assets:     

1100   Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1(c)) $ 503,318   5   507,977   6  

1151   Notes receivable (Note (6)(d))  81,338   1   68,492   1  

1170   Accounts receivable (Note (6)(d))  315,297   3   328,309   4  

1180   Accounts receivable due from related parties (Notes (6)(d) and (7))  813,294   9   762,298   8  

1200   Other receivables  (Notes (6)(d) and (7))  20,431   -   1,195   -  

130X   Inventories (Note (6)(e))  751,106   8   612,900   7  

1470   Other current assets, others  18,566   -   18,188   -  

 
 

 2,503,350   26   2,299,359   26  

  Non-current assets:             

1517   Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Note (6)(c))  152,754   2   271,479   3  

1550   Investments accounted for using equity method, net (Note (6)(f))  6,679,403   69   6,167,751   68  

1600   Property, plant and equipment (Notes (6)(h) and (8))  188,257   2   183,703   2  

1755   Right-of-use assets (Note (6)(i))  9,712   -   11,895   -  

1780   Intangible assets (Note (6)(j))  2,434   -   3,755   -  

1840   Deferred tax assets (Note (6)(p))  65,416   1   100,185   1  

1975   Net defined benefit asset (Note (6)(o))  20,680   -   8,970   -  

1980   Other non-current financial assets   14,668   -   10,339   -  

1990   Other non-current assets, others   16,802   -   14,834   -  

 
 

 7,150,126   74   6,772,911   74  

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

            

  TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,653,476   100   9,072,270   100  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

  LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Amount % Amount % 

  Current liabilities:     

2100   Short-term borrowings (Note (6)(k)) $ 150,000   2   150,000   2  

2120   Current financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note (6)(b))  -   -   673   -  

2150   Notes payable  398   -   398   -  

2170   Accounts payable (Note (7))  803,892   8   734,993   8  

2200   Other payables (Note (7))  193,039   2   187,659   2  

2230   Current tax liabilities   52,271   1   45,041   1  

2280   Current lease liabilities (Note (6)(m))  3,009   -   2,571   -  

2399   Other current liabilities, others (Notes (6)(l) and (7))  26,418   -   27,196   -  

     1,229,027   13   1,148,531   13  

  Non-Current liabilities:             

2570   Deferred tax liabilities (Note (6)(p))  216,957   2   175,674   2  

2580   Non-current lease liabilities (Note (6)(m))  6,894   -   9,510   -  

2670   Other non-current liabilities, others  166   -   166   -  

     224,017   2   185,350   2  

     Total liabilities  1,453,044   15   1,333,881   15  

 
 

    

  Equity (Note (6)(q)):     

3100   Share capital  1,482,064   15   1,411,490   16  

3200   Capital surplus   3,276,440   34   3,276,107   36  

3300   Retained earnings   3,344,438   35   3,192,892   35  

3400   Other equity  97,490   1   (142,100)   (2)  

     Total equity  8,200,432   85   7,738,389   85  

  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 9,653,476   100   9,072,270   100  
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE) 

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. 

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT EARNINGS PER SHARE) 

 

 

 

  For the Years Ended December 31, 

  2022 2021 

  Amount % Amount % 

4000  Operating revenue (Notes (6)(s) and (7)) $ 4,654,419   100   4,373,194   100  

5000  Operating costs  (Note (6)(e))  3,867,546   83   3,652,377   84  

  Gross profit from operations  786,873   17   720,817   16  

5910  Less: Unrealized profit from sales   118,433   3   121,722   3  

5920  Add: Realized profit from sales  117,508   3   120,315   3  

    785,948   17   719,410   16  

  Operating expenses:     

6100   Selling expenses   229,586   5   214,653   5  

6200   Administrative expenses   176,195   4   163,148   3  

6450   Expected credit loss (gain) (Note (6)(d))  3,000   -   (2,625)   -  

    408,781   9   375,176   8  

  Net operating income   377,167   8   344,234   8  

  Non-operating income and expenses:     

7100  Interest income (Note (6)(u))  2,296   -   624   -  

7010  Other income (Notes (6)(u) and (7))  4,760   -   4,082   -  

7020  Other gains and losses (Notes (6)(u) and (7))  20,010   -   10,616   -  

7050  Finance costs (Note (6)(u))  (1,392)   -   (572)   -  

7060  Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method 

(Note (6)(f))  383,942   8   357,085   8  

    409,616   8   371,835   8  

7900  Profit before tax  786,783   16   716,069   16  

7950  Less: Tax expense (Note (6)(p))  119,330   2   108,920   2  

  Profit  667,453   14   607,149   14  

 Other comprehensive income (loss):      

8310  Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss     

8311  Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans  10,841   -   2,572   -  

8316  Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through 

other comprehensive income  6,716   -   25,284   1  

8330  Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for 

using equity method, components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified 

to profit or loss  121,169   3   5,695   -  

8349  Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss  5,826   -   972   -  

 Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss  132,900   3   32,579   1  

8360  Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss     

8361  Exchange differences on translation  185,051   4   (73,200)   (2)  

8380  Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for 

using equity method, components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to 

profit or loss  8,244   -   (2,513)   -  

8399  Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to 

profit or loss  37,010   (1)   (14,640)   -  

 Total items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss  156,285   3   (61,073)   (2)  

 Other comprehensive income, net  289,185   6   (28,494)   (1)  

8500  Total comprehensive income for the year $ 956,638   20   578,655   13  

 Earnings per share (Note (6)(r))    

9750  Basic earnings per share (NT dollars) $ 4.50   4.10  

9850  Diluted earnings per share (NT dollars) $ 4.48   4.07  
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE) 

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS) 

 

 

      Total other equity interest  

 Share capital  Retained earnings  Exchange 

 Unrealized gains 

(losses) from financial 

assets measured at fair  

 

Ordinary  

shares  

Capital 

surplus 

Legal 

reserve 

Special  

reserve 

Unappropriated 

retained earnings 

 differences on  

translation of 

foreign financial 

statements 

 value through 

other 

comprehensive 

income Total equity 

Balance as of January 1, 2021  $ 1,411,490   3,276,107   778,515   56,349   2,182,516   (199,369)   85,289   7,590,897  

Profit for the year  -   -   -   -   607,149   -   -   607,149  

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year  -   -   -   -   3,617   (61,073)   28,962   (28,494)  

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year  -   -   -   -   610,766   (61,073)   28,962   578,655  

Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:          

 Legal reserve appropriated  -   -   57,878   -   (57,878)   -   -   -  

 Special reserve appropriated  -   -   -   57,731   (57,731)   -   -   -  

 Cash dividends of ordinary share  -   -   -   -   (494,021)   -   -   (494,021)  

Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method  -   -   -   -   62,440   -   -   62,440  

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries  -   -   -   -   418   -   -   418  

Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other 

comprehensive income  -   -   -   -   (4,091)   -   4,091   -  

Balance as of December 31, 2021  1,411,490   3,276,107   836,393   114,080   2,242,419   (260,442)   118,342   7,738,389  

Profit for the year  -   -   -   -   667,453   -   -   667,453  

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year  -   -   -   -   12,989   156,285   119,911   289,185  

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year  -   -   -   -   680,442   156,285   119,911   956,638  

Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:          

 Legal reserve appropriated  -   -   66,953   -   (66,953)   -   -   -  

 Special reserve appropriated  -   -   -   28,020   (28,020)   -   -   -  

 Cash dividends of ordinary share  -   -   -   -   (494,021)   -   -   (494,021)  

 Stock dividends of ordinary share  70,574   -   -   -   (70,574)   -   -   -  

Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method  -   341   -   -   (1,228)   -   -   (887)  

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries  -   (8)   -   -   321   -   -   313  

Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other 

comprehensive income  -   -   -   -   36,606   -   (36,606)   -  

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 1,482,064   3,276,440   903,346   142,100   2,298,992   (104,157)   201,647   8,200,432  
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE) 

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS) 

 
 

 For the Years Ended December 31, 
 2022 2021 

Cash flows from operating activities:       

Profit before tax $ 786,783   716,069  

Adjustments:       

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):       

Depreciation expense  28,993   26,201  

Amortization expense  2,379   2,268  

Expected credit loss (gain)  3,000   (2,625)  

Net loss (gain) on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  1,759   6,640  

Interest expense  1,392   572  

Interest income  (2,296)   (624)  

Dividend income  (4,760)   (4,082)  

Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method  (383,942)   (357,085)  

Loss on disposal of investments accounted for using equity method  4   -  

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  2,180   -  

Unrealized profit from sales  118,433   121,722  

Realized profit from sales  (117,508)   (120,315)  

Others  (155)   (171)  

Total adjustments to reconcile profit  (350,521)   (327,499)  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:       

Changes in operating assets:       

Notes receivable  (12,846)   (7,284)  

Accounts receivable  10,012   (11,362)  

Accounts receivable due from related parties  (50,996)   (115,064)  

Other receivables  1,190   2,611  

Inventories  (168,608)   (57,644)  

Net defined benefit asset  (869)   (799)  

Other current assets  (378)   (7,133)  

Total changes in operating assets  (222,495)   (196,675)  

Changes in operating liabilities:       

Notes payable  -   2  

Accounts payable  68,899   114,800  

Other payables  5,198   25,398  

Other current liabilities  (778)   17,301  

Total changes in operating liabilities  73,319   157,501  

Total changes in operating assets and liabilities  (149,176)   (39,174)  

Total adjustments  (499,697)   (366,673)  

Cash inflow generated from operations  287,086   349,396  

Interest received  2,171   624  

Income taxes paid  (85,156)   (71,874)  

Net cash flows from operating activities  204,101   278,146  
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 (ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE) 

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS) 

 
 

 For the Years Ended December 31, 
 2022 2021 

Cash flows from investing activities:       

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  130,914   39,818  

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  (2,432)   (5,847)  

Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method  (10,000)   -  

Proceeds from disposal of investments accounted for using equity method   6,634   -  

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (2,335)   (5,011)  

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  22   -  

Increase in refundable deposits  (4,329)   -  

Acquisition of intangible assets  -   (3,713)  

Increase in other financial assets  -   (1,197)  

Increase in other non-current assets  (3,026)   (8,367)  

Dividends received  173,878   121,510  

Net cash flows (used in) from investing activities  289,326   137,193  

Cash flows from financing activities:       

Increase in short-term borrowings  -   150,000  

Cash dividends paid  (494,021)   (494,021)  

Interest paid  (1,210)   (543)  

Payment of lease liabilities  (2,855)   (2,403)  

Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities  (498,086)   (346,967)  

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (4,659)   68,372  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  507,977   439,605  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 503,318   507,977  
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

 

To the Board of Directors of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.: 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (“the 

Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 

the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, 

and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors (please refer to Other Matter paragraph), the 

accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 

position of the Group as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its consolidated financial performance and its 

consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 

Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), 

International Accounting Standards (“ IASs” ), Interpretations developed by the International Financial 

Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”) 

endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial 

Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 

Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Account of Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirement. Based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, 

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.  

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 

the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. Based on our judgment, the key audit matter that should be disclosed 

in this report is as follows: 

1. Impairment Assessment on Receivables 

Please refer to Note (4)(g) for accounting policies of account receivable allowance provision.
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Description of key audit matter: 

The management of the Group performed its assessment based on the default risk of accounts receivable and 

the rate of expected loss. Because the assessment of impairment loss of receivables involves critical accounting 

estimates, which are subject to the judgment of the management, the assessment of the impairment loss of 

receivables is deemed to be a key audit matter. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit: 

Our main audit procedures in response to the assessment of the impairment of receivables were assessing the 

reasonableness of the methodology and assumptions used by the management for the impairment assessment 

of receivables and whether the methodology was adopted consistently, testing the reasonableness of the 

information used by the management for assessing the impairment of receivables, reviewing the accuracy of 

the calculation of the allowance for receivables, and evaluating the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure for 

impairment of receivables.  

Other Matter 

We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements 

of the Group. Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our 

opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for such subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of other 

auditors. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the total assets of these subsidiaries were NT$329,131 thousand and 

NT$446,627 thousand, constituting 2% and 3% of consolidated total assets, respectively. The total operating 

revenues of these subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were NT$252,360 thousand and 

NT$253,352 thousand, constituting both 4% of consolidated total operating revenues, respectively. We also did 

not audit the financial statements of certain associates and joint ventures, which represented investment in other 

entities accounted for using the equity method of the Group. Those statements were audited by other auditors, 

whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for such 

entities, is based solely on the reports of other auditors. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts 

of these investments were NT$1,340,727 thousand and NT$550,602 thousand, constituting 8% and 4% of 

consolidated total assets, respectively. The share of comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures 

accounted for using the equity method for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, amounted to NT$101,011 

thousand and NT$100,402 thousand, were constituting 9% and 15% of consolidated total comprehensive income, 

respectively. 

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years 

ended  December 31, 2022 and 2021, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion with an Other Matter 

paragraph. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 

Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 

accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with 

the IFRSs, IASs, IFRC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the 

Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 

of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or 

has no realistic alternative but to do so.. 

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Group’s 

financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise 

professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Group’s internal control. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 

consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 

activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible 

for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit 

opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 



 

Notes to Readers 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position, financial 

performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not 

those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those generally 

accepted and applied in the Republic of China. 

The independent auditors’  report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese 

version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English 

and Chinese language independent auditors’  report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’  report are Tsao-Jen Wu and 

Jun-Guang Chen. 

 

KPMG 

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China) 

March 16, 2023 
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  December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

  ASSETS Amount % Amount % 

  Current assets:     

1100   Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1(c)) $ 2,506,995   15   3,072,264   20  

1136   Current financial assets at amortized cost (Note (6)(d))  704,439   4   682,603   5  

1151   Notes receivable (Notes (6)(e), (7) and (8))  302,331   2   256,809   2  

1152   Other notes receivable (Notes (6)(e), (7) and (8))  317,598   2   290,515   2  

1170   Accounts receivable (Notes (6)(e) and (7))  1,411,527   9   1,361,094   9  

1200   Other receivables (Notes (6)(e) and (7))  2,997,715   18   2,566,629   17  

130X   Inventories (Note (6)(f))  1,161,088   7   910,243   6  

1476   Other current financial assets (Note (8))  17,179   -   16,793   -  

1479   Other current assets, others  109,545   1   150,593   1  

 
 

 9,528,417   58   9,307,543   62  

  Non-current assets:             

1517   Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Note (6)(c))  686,438   4   701,541   5  

1550   Investments accounted for using equity method (Note (6)(g))  3,670,101   22   2,629,538   17  

1600   Property, plant and equipment (Notes (6)(k) and (8))  760,310   5   636,488   4  

1755   Right-of-use assets (Note (6)(l))  267,461   2   277,673   2  

1760   Investment property, net (Notes (6)(m) and (8))  1,109,012   7   1,019,102   7  

1780   Intangible assets (Note (6)(n))  31,622   -   33,004   -  

1840   Deferred tax assets (Note (6)(v))  158,747   1   202,413   1  

1930   Long-term notes and accounts receivable (Note (6)(e))  31,962   -   17,269   -  

1975   Net defined benefit asset (Note (6)(u))  24,375   -   12,021   -  

1980   Other non-current financial assets (Note (8))  179,369   1   227,114   2  

1990   Other non-current assets, others   34,692   -   41,294   -  

 
 

 6,954,089   42   5,797,457   38  

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

            

  TOTAL ASSETS $ 16,482,506   100   15,105,000   100   

 

 

 

 

 
  December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

  LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Amount % Amount % 

  Current liabilities:     

2100   Short-term borrowings (Note (6)(o)) $ 535,134   3   479,966   3  

2120   Current financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note (6)(b))  -   -   673   -  

2130   Current contract liabilities  484,941   3   379,224   3  

2150   Notes payable  403   -   398   -  

2170   Accounts payable (Note (7))  999,989   6   947,132   6  

2200   Other payables (Notes (6)(p) and (7))  3,215,075   20   2,721,225   18  

2230   Current tax liabilities   98,437   1   63,875   -  

2280   Current lease liabilities (Notes (6)(s) and (7))  90,864   -   72,244   1  

2399   Other current liabilities, others (Notes (6)(q), (r) and (7))  327,202   2   290,292   2  

     5,752,045   35   4,955,029   33  

  Non-Current liabilities:             

2570   Deferred tax liabilities (Note (6)(v))  233,803   1   176,695   1  

2580   Non-current lease liabilities (Notes (6)(s) and (7))  182,052   1   209,782   2  

2640   Net defined benefit liability (Note (6)(u))  9,378   -   12,474   -  

2650   Credit balance of investments accounted for using equity method (Note (6)(g))  526   -   -   -  

2670   Other non-current liabilities, others (Note (6)(q))  7,393   -   5,308   -  

     433,152   2   404,259   3  

     Total liabilities  6,185,197   37   5,359,288   36  

 
 

    

  Equity attributable to owners of parent (Note (6)(w)):     

3100   Share capital  1,482,064   9   1,411,490   9  

3200   Capital surplus   3,276,440   20   3,276,107   22  

3300   Retained earnings   3,344,438   20   3,192,892   21  

3400   Other equity  97,490   1   (142,100)   (1)  

   Total equity attributable to owners of parent  8,200,432   50   7,738,389   51  

36XX   Non-controlling interests (Notes (6)(j) and (w))  2,096,877   13   2,007,323   13  

     Total equity  10,297,309   63   9,745,712   64  

  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 16,482,506   100   15,105,000   100  
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(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE) 

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT EARNINGS PER SHARE) 

 

 

 

  For the Years Ended December 31, 

  2022 2021 

  Amount % Amount % 

4000  Operating revenue (Notes (y) and (7)) $ 7,186,828   100   6,573,152   100  

5000  Operating costs (Notes (6)(f) and (7))  5,672,791   79   5,199,126   79  

  Gross profit from operations  1,514,037   21   1,374,026   21  

5910  Less: Unrealized profit from sales   118,433   2   121,722   2  

5920  Add: Realized profit from sales  117,508   2   120,315   2  

    1,513,112   21   1,372,619   21  

  Operating expenses:     

6100   Selling expenses (Note (7))  585,199   8   509,139   8  

6200   Administrative expenses (Note (7))  308,085   4   261,402   4  

6450   Expected credit loss (Note (6)(e))  13,216   -   7,052   -  

    906,500   12   777,593   12  

  Net operating income   606,612   9   595,026   9  

  Non-operating income and expenses:     

7100  Interest income (Note (6)(aa))  24,903   -   10,692   -  

7010  Other income (Notes (6)(aa) and (7))  25,325   -   24,940   -  

7020  Other gains and losses (Notes (6)(aa) and (7))  27,069   -   18,406   -  

7050  Finance costs (Notes (6)(aa) and (7))  (10,449)   -   (8,761)   -  

7060  Share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method 

(Note (6)(g))  290,240   4   233,433   4  

    357,088   4   278,710   4  

7900  Profit before tax  963,700   13   873,736   13  

7950  Less: Tax expense (Note (6)(v))  178,399   2   151,447   2  

  Profit  785,301   11   722,289   11  

 Other comprehensive income (loss):      

8310  Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:     

8311  Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans  15,892   -   5,401   -  

8316  Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through 

other comprehensive income  109,455   2   6,516   -  

8320  Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity 

method, components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or 

loss  83,770   1   22,735   -  

8349  Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss  18,573   -   (761)   -  

 Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss  190,544   3   35,413   -  

8360  Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss     

8361  Exchange differences on translation  370,824   5   (118,494)   (2)  

8370  Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity 

method, components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss  (154,738)   (2)   31,647   1  

8399  Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to 

profit or loss  42,364   1   (16,272)   -  

 Total items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss  173,722   2   (70,575)   (1)  

 Other comprehensive income, net  364,266   5   (35,162)   (1)  

8500  Total comprehensive income  $ 1,149,567   16   687,127   10  

 Profit attributable to:     

8610  Owners of parent $ 667,453   9   607,149   9  

8620  Non-controlling interests  117,848   2   115,140   2  

   $ 785,301   11   722,289   11  

 Comprehensive income attributable to:     

8710  Owners of parent $ 956,638   13   578,655   9  

8720  Non-controlling interests  192,929   3   108,472   1  

   $ 1,149,567   16   687,127   10  

 Earnings per share (Note (6)(x))    

9750  Basic earnings per share (NT dollars) $ 4.50   4.10  

9850  Diluted earnings per share (NT dollars) $ 4.48   4.07  
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EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS) 

 

 

 Equity attributable to owners of parent   

      Total other equity interest    

 Share capital  Retained earnings    Unrealized gains    

 

Ordinary  

shares  

Capital 

surplus 

Legal 

reserve 

Special  

reserve 

Unappropriated 

retained earnings 

Exchange 

differences on  

translation of 

foreign financial 

statements 

 (losses) from 

financial assets 

measured at fair 

value through 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

 Equity 

attributable to 

owners of parent  

Non-controlling 

interests Total equity 

Balance as of January 1, 2021  $ 1,411,490   3,276,107   778,515   56,349   2,182,516   (199,369)   85,289   7,590,897   1,988,807   9,579,704  

Profit for the year  -   -   -   -   607,149   -   -   607,149   115,140   722,289  

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year  -   -   -   -   3,617   (61,073)   28,962   (28,494)   (6,668)   (35,162)  

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year  -   -   -   -   610,766   (61,073)   28,962   578,655   108,472   687,127  

Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:            

 Legal reserve appropriated  -   -   57,878   -   (57,878)   -   -   -   -   -  

 Special reserve appropriated  -   -   -   57,731   (57,731)   -   -   -   -   -  

 Cash dividends of ordinary share  -   -   -   -   (494,021)   -   -   (494,021)   -   (494,021)  

Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method  -   -   -   -   62,440   -   -   62,440   -   62,440  

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries  -   -   -   -   418   -   -   418   -   418  

Changes in non-controlling interests  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (89,956)   (89,956)  

Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive 

income  -   -   -   -   (4,091)   -   4,091   -   -   -  

Balance as of December 31, 2021  1,411,490   3,276,107   836,393   114,080   2,242,419   (260,442)   118,342   7,738,389   2,007,323   9,745,712  

Profit for the year  -   -   -   -   667,453   -   -   667,453   117,848   785,301  

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year  -   -   -   -   12,989   156,285   119,911   289,185   75,081   364,266  

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year  -   -   -   -   680,442   156,285   119,911   956,638   192,929   1,149,567  

Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:            

 Legal reserve appropriated  -   -   66,953   -   (66,953)   -   -   -   -   -  

 Special reserve appropriated  -   -   -   28,020   (28,020)   -   -   -   -   -  

 Cash dividends of ordinary share  -   -   -   -   (494,021)   -   -   (494,021)   -   (494,021)  

 Stock dividends of ordinary share  70,574   -   -   -   (70,574)   -   -   -   -   -  

Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method  -   341   -   -   (1,228)   -   -   (887)   -   (887)  

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries  -   (8)   -   -   321   -   -   313   -   313  

Changes in non-controlling interests  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (103,375)   (103,375)  

Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive 

income  -   -   -   -   36,606   -   (36,606)   -   -   -  

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 1,482,064   3,276,440   903,346   142,100   2,298,992   (104,157)   201,647   8,200,432   2,096,877   10,297,309  
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EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
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 For the Years Ended December 31, 
 2022 2021 

Cash flows from operating activities:       

Profit before tax $ 963,700   873,736  

Adjustments:       

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):       

Depreciation expense  218,774   198,633  

Amortization expense  3,664   4,321  

Expected credit loss  13,216   7,052  

Net loss (gain) on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  1,759   6,640  

Interest expense  10,449   8,761  

Interest income  (24,903)   (10,692)  

Dividend income  (20,082)   (19,320)  

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method  (290,240)   (233,433)  

Gain on disposal of property, plan and equipment  (214)   (5)  

Gain on disposal of other assets  (40)   -  

Loss on disposal of control of subsidiaries  43   -  

Impairment loss on non-financial assets  2,180   -  

Unrealized profit from sales  118,433   121,722  

Realized profit from sales  (117,508)   (120,315)  

Others  (2,068)   (1,804)  

Total adjustments to reconcile profit  (86,537)   (38,440)  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:       

Changes in operating assets:       

Notes receivable  (45,389)   (36,676)  

Accounts receivable  (62,832)   (138,477)  

Other receivables and notes  (436,495)   (363,772)  

Inventories  (312,958)   (121,871)  

Net defined benefit asset  (893)   (804)  

Other current assets  29,791   6,037  

Other operating assets  (14,693)   (5,073)  

Total changes in operating assets  (843,469)   (660,636)  

Changes in operating liabilities:       

Contract liabilities  105,717   67,246  

Notes payable  5   -  

Accounts payable  52,857   65,264  

Other payables  493,741   719,867  

Other current liabilities  36,913   17,009  

Net defined benefit liability  1,334   (1,976)  

Other operating liabilities  1,113   (2,884)  

Total changes in operating liabilities  691,680   864,526  

Total changes in operating assets and liabilities  (151,789)   203,890  

Total adjustments  (238,326)   165,450  

Cash inflow generated from operations  725,374   1,039,186  

Interest received  21,063   8,917  

Income taxes paid  (109,311)   (103,054)  

Net cash flows from operating activities  637,126   945,049  



(ENGLISH TRANSLATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN CHINESE) 

EXCELSIOR MEDICAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS) 

 
 

 
 For the Years Ended December 31, 
 2021 2020 
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Cash flows from investing activities: 

      

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  130,914   39,818  

Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost  (441,456)   (680,170)  

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortized cost  409,267   764,031  

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  -   (11,694)  

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  -   5,847  

Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method  (839,876)   -  

Net cash flow from disposal of control of subsidiary  2,755   -  

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (171,596)   (164,690)  

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  2,603   94  

Increase in refundable deposits  (11,016)   (79,406)  

Decrease in refundable deposits  57,344   3,016  

Acquisition of intangible assets  (909)   (4,064)  

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets  58   -  

Acquisition of investment properties  (99,177)   (21,695)  

Proceeds from disposal of investment property  2,525   609  

Decrease in other financial assets  1,031   138,281  

Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets  4,775   (24,504)  

Dividends received  262,753   178,652  

Net cash flows (used in) from investing activities  (690,005)   144,125  

Cash flows from financing activities:       

Increase in short-term borrowings  55,168   75,468  

Repayments of long-term borrowings  -   (4,055)  

Increase in guarantee deposits received  972   2,876  

Decrease in guarantee deposits received  -   (15)  

Payment of lease liabilities  (82,581)   (75,635)  

Cash dividends paid  (494,021)   (494,021)  

Acquisition of ownership interests in subsidiaries  (11,294)   -  

Interest paid  (10,066)   (8,570)  

Change in non-controlling interests  (92,067)   (89,956)  

Net cash flows used in financing activities  (633,889)   (593,908)  

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  121,499   (41,466)  

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (565,269)   453,800  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  3,072,264   2,618,464  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2,506,995   3,072,264  
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Attachment 7：Comparison Table of Amendments to the “Operational Procedures for Loaning of Company 

Funds” 

 

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd.  

Comparison Table of Amendments to the Operational Procedures for Loaning of Company Funds 

Amended 

Article After Amendment Before Amendment 

Reason for 

amendment 

Article 3-1 Unusual objects of fund loans: 

1.Accounts receivable of the Company that 

exceeds the normal credit period for a certain 

period of time (more than 3 months) and the 

amount of which exceeds 2% of the capital 

belongs to the fund lender based on the Audit 

Committee's latest decision and its submission to 

the Board, then resolution of the Board of 

Directors, unless it can be proved that there is 

indeed no intention to lend funds (for example, 

the Company has taken the measures of 

collection, legal action or other practical and 

feasible management and control measures. 

 

Unusual objects of fund loans: 

1.Accounts receivable of the Company that 

exceeds the normal credit period for a certain 

period of time (more than 3 months) and the 

amount of which exceeds 2% of the capital 

belongs to the fund lender based on the 

resolution of the Board of Directors, unless it can 

be proved that the Company has taken the 

measures of collection, legal action or other 

practical and feasible management and control 

measures. 

 

 

Modified with 

the act. 

Article 5 The term of each loan lent by the Company and 

interest rate: 

When complying with Article 3 Fund Loans and 

Objects, the following terms and interest-bearing 

methods shall be followed: 

1.The term of each loan extended by the 

Company shall not exceed one (1) year or one (1) 

operational period from the date of loan, 

determined by whichever is longer, and no 

repayment shall be made at the end of the period 

without an actual outflow of money or an 

extension of the period of repayment agreed to 

by the Board. However, the Company engages in 

the lending of funds between foreign companies 

in which it holds, directly and indirectly, 100% of 

the voting shares, or Foreign companies in which 

the Company directly and indirectly holds 100 

percent of the voting shares are engaged in 

lending funds to the Company, its extensions of 

short-term funding may be granted. If an 

extension of the loan is approved by the Board 

prior to the expiry date, there shall be no 

requirement for actual monetary flow but 

repayment shall continue to be made on an actual 

monetary flow basis at the end of the extension 

period. 

2. The interest rate shall not be lower than the 

Company's average short-term bank borrowing 

rate at the time of lending. The interests shall be 

calculated on a monthly basis. Only under the 

circumstances that parent company and 

subsidiary have need for loans, its term and 

interest rate shall be adjusted accordingly. 

The term of each loan lent by the Company and 

interest rate: 

When complying with Article 3 Fund Loans and 

Objects, the following terms and interest-bearing 

methods shall be followed: 

1.The term of each loan extended by the 

Company shall not exceed one (1) year or one 

(1) operational period from the date of loan, 

determined by whichever is longer. 

2. The interest rate shall not be lower than the 

Company's average short-term bank borrowing 

rate at the time of lending. The interests shall be 

calculated on a monthly basis. Only under the 

circumstances that parent company and 

subsidiary have need for loans, its term and 

interest rate shall be adjusted accordingly. 

Modified with 

the act. 
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Attachment 8：List of Release of the prohibition on directors from participation in 

competitive businesses. 

 

Excelsior Medical Co., Ltd. 

List of Releasing of the prohibition on directors from participation in competition 

businesses 

 

Title and Name Company Name and Concurrent Position 

Chang Hsien-Cheng 

Director of Arich Best Chain CO., LTD. 

Chairperson of Excelsior Asset Management CO., LTD. 

Director of Bestsmile CO., LTD.  

      Chang Ming-Cheng 

Director of Nephrocare Limited.  

Director of Cardinal Medical Services Ltd.  

Director of Medifly CO., LTD.  

Director of Arich Best Chain CO., LTD. 

Fu Jo-Hsuan  
General Manager of Nephrocare Limited. 

General Manager of Cardinal Medical Services Ltd.  

Kuo Yu-Chia Supervisor of Cheng Hsien Invstment CO., LTD. 

Chan Chien-Lung Supervisor of Archcyber Technology CO., LTD. 
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Attachment 9：The Impact of Stock Dividend Issuance on Business Performance, EPS 

and Shareholders Return Rate  

 

Description 2023(forecast)  

Opening paid-in capital  NT$1,482,064,190 

Status of current 

year dividend 

distribution  

(Note 1) 

Cash dividend per share (note 2)  NT$3.65 

Per-share stock dividend from capital increase by earnings 

recapitalization 
0.05 shares  

Per-share stock dividend from capital increase by capital 

surplus  

0 shares 

Change in 

business 

performance  

Profit from operations   N/A (Note 3) 

Increase (decrease) ratio of profit from operations from the 

same period of the previous year  
N/A (Note 3)  

Net profit after tax N/A (Note 3) 

Increase (decrease) ratio of net profit after tax from the same 

period of the previous year  
N/A (Note 3) 

EPS (retroactive adjustment) N/A (Note 3) 

Increase (decrease) ratio of EPS from the same period of the 

previous year. 
N/A (Note 3) 

Annual average ROI (annual average P/E ratio)  N/A (Note 3) 

Pro forma EPS 

and P/E  

If the capital increase by 

earnings recapitalization is 

totally distributed as the cash 

dividend 

Pro forma EPS  N/A (Note 3) 

Pro forma annual average 

ROI  
N/A (Note 3) 

If the capital increase by capital 

surplus is not processed 

Pro forma EPS N/A (Note 3) 

Pro forma annual average 

ROI  
N/A (Note 3) 

If the capital surplus is not 

processed, and the capital 

increase by earnings 

recapitalization is distributed as 

the cash dividend  

Pro forma EPS  N/A (Note 3) 

Pro forma annual average 

ROI 
N/A (Note 3) 

Note 1:  As adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 16, 2023.  
Note 2:  In case of any change in the per-share cash dividend as a result of the fact that any holder of the convertible 

corporate bond issued by the Company applies for conversion or repurchase of the Company’s shares, or the 

treasury stock is transferred or deleted, or carries out a cash capital increase , which further affects the number of 

the Company’s outstanding shares, Chairperson shall be authorized to adjust the  shareholder’s cash dividend 

rate according to the distribution amount adopted  for this proposal  and the number of the Company’s actual 

outstanding shares. 
Note 3:  According to the “Regulations Governing the Publication of Financial Forecasts of Public Companies”, the 

Company is not required to release its 2023 financial forecast, so such information is not available.  
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Attachment 10：The Shareholding situation of Directors 
 
1. Shares required to be held by the Company’s current directors and supervisors are as follows:  

The Company’s common stock shares  148,206,419 shares 

The ratio of the shares required to be held by the entire body of directors (note) 7.5％ 

The shares required to be held by the entire body of directors (note) 8,892,385 shares 
 

Note: According to Article 2 of the “Rules and Review Procedures for Director and Supervisor Share Ownership Ratios 

at Public Companies”, the amount of the total registered shares held by the entire body of directors and supervisors 

shall not be less than the regulated ratio of the amount of the total shares issued by the Company. However, if the 

amount of the total shares held by the entire body of directors or supervisors is less than the amount of the maximum 

shares required by the previous rank, the total amount of the maximum shares of the previous rank shall prevail.  
Also, according to the preceding Rules of the same Article, the shares held by the independent directors elected by 

the Company shall not be included in the total amount referred to in the preceding paragraph. If the number of the 

elected independent directors is more than two, the ratio of the shares held by entire body of directors, excluding 

the independent directors, can be reduced to 80% of the shareholding ratio calculated according to the preceding 

paragraph. Furthermore, as Excelsior has established the audit committee that satisfies the requirements of the 

securities and Exchange Act, the minimum shareholding requirements for supervisors do not apply.  
   

 

2. The shares held by the Company’s directors and supervisors and their shareholding 
ratios are as below:  

Title Name 

As of April 23,2023 – the date 

suspending share ownership transfer 

Shares Shareholding ratio 

Director  Fu Hui-Tung     493,492  0.33% 

Director Chang Ming-Cheng  162,787  0.11% 

Director  Hsieh Yen-Sheng  673,260  0.46% 

Director 

Excelsior Group Holdings Co., Ltd.  

Representatives:  

Chen Tun-Ling, Chang Hsien-Cheng 

15,664,676  10.57% 

Director Fu Jo-Hsuan 105,000  0.07% 

Independent 

director  
Chang Wu-I 0 0% 

Independent 

director 
Kuo Yu-Chia 0 0% 

Independent 

director 
Jhan Cian-Long 0 0% 

Total shares held by directors and their total 

shareholding ratio  
17,099,215 11.54% 

 


